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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL
SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Rural Commercial Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

CTBC Bank Co., Limited

The Export-Import Bank of China
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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to

announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLHFE

2020 2019 Change
—EIERF —E-NF BE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Revenue W e 9,631,362 8,362,722 +15.2%
Gross profit EF 1,188,279 1,015,386 +17.0%
Profit for the year REFZHF 137,964 127,533 +8.2%
Profit attributable to owners of [SYNCIEZ PN 1
the parent i ] 123,732 132,586 —6.7%
Basic earnings per share, BRERER
in RMB (AR¥%T) 0.09 0.10
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
e ‘ EH _ RE A ‘ SYNSL 2PN Epivil _
12,000,000 AR 1,500,000 AT 150,000 AT 150,000 AT
137,964
127,533 IR
123,732
10:000,000 Q651362 1,200,000 1,188,279 120,000 120,000
B 1,015,386
8,000,000
900,000 90,000 90,000
600,000 60,000 60,000
4,000,000
2000000 300,000 30,000 30,000
’ 2019 2020 ’ 2019 2020 ’ 2019 2020 ; 2019 2020
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Financial Highlights B4 75 #§ &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB123.7 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.09 (2019: RMBO0.10),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,357,594,679 (2019: 1,357,521,666) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK2.0 cents). The
Company had not declared and paid any interim dividend or
special dividend during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
24 May 2021.

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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WORDS FROM THE CHAIRMAN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | hereby present the
Group’s report on its annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Period”) for shareholders’ review.

2020 Review

2020 was another challenging year to the Group. The Group
experienced total lockdown of its PRC operations and
business in the first quarter of 2020 due to the outbreak of
novel coronavirus (COVID-19). As the COVID-19 epidemic
spread globally in the second quarter of 2020, it caused
different degrees of disruption to our overseas production
facilities and business. Since April 2020, the quickly resumed
production capacity in the PRC provided full support to the
Group’s global requirement despite overseas production
bases suffered from different degrees of suspension during
the Period.

The PRC business recovery was apparent and
understandable due to successful pandemic control. All
three categories of battery business performed well, resulting
in total around 20% growth in revenue. The acceleration of
5G development, the recovery of automobile production,
continuous enlarging domestic car and low-speed electric
vehicles ownership as well as machines used in logistic
area in the PRC were the key factors pushing up demand
in all categories of battery in the market. Together with the
temporary uprising export demand caused by overseas
production disruption, our export business performed well
but was dragged by weak overseas demand in reserve
power batteries due to delay in various telecommunication
and data center projects among countries. Altogether, total
growth was around 12% for battery business. With recycling
business being back to normal production since late May
2020 and accomplishing around 34% revenue growth, our
overall performance was better than our expectation.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement = & 3R &

During the Period, the Group pulled in more resources
working on new models of lead-acid and lithium-ion
batteries. At the same time, production volume of the
Group’s two new plants in Viethnam was stably ramping up
while the production capacity in the PRC for lead-acid plant
was expanded by 10% to cope with the current and future
growth. Resources for production capacity will be more
concentrated in the PRC in the near future.

PROSPECT & CHALLENGES

China’s economy might witness major improvements in
the next five years, as reforms for sustainable development
are underway based on the outline of the 14th Five-Year
Plan and the long-range objectives through 2035. China is
developing strategic technologies and digital infrastructure
(including a cryptocurrency) and policies will be implemented
to accelerate 5G, big data, and artificial intelligence
integration in advanced manufacturing clusters within various
industries from which reserve power battery manufacturer
will be benefited.

China’s pledge to peak CO2 emissions by 2030 relies
on Made in China 2025 goals in power and new energy
technologies and materials, such as batteries. Plans call for
half of vehicles to be electric or fuel-cell powered, and the
other half hybrid by 2035. Green industries are facing huge
development opportunities in which massive application
of electric vehicles and green power generation, with
photovoltaic and wind power electricity will definitely push up
the demand for different kinds of battery in near future.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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It is clear that the dual circulation policy will play a central
role in the 14th Five-Year Plan in which this two-pronged
development strategy will involve mutual reinforcement
of domestic and international markets to spur long-term,
sustainable consumption patterns, and to hedge against
external shocks within the global environment. The Group wiill
allocate most of our resources in China, focus on and invest
in relevant technology and products, seizing opportunities
arising from this fast-evolving market.

However, a 2021 global recovery is very uncertain. Although
China’s economy is growing strongly again, many of the
world’s richest nations may not fully rebound until 2022 at
the earliest. The general consensus in the market is that
the global economy will accelerate in 2021, though with
significant variation around the world. The full benefits
of vaccination might not be felt due to poor international
cooperation and Europe is having trouble with vaccinations
at this moment. The Group will pay extra attention to the
changing business environment and revise our strategies as
and when situation calls for.

Back to China, although outlook seems promising on
continuing business development but fierce competition
can be expected. Oversupply can result in price war
affecting margin and profit while higher R&D investments in
new battery models to cope with fast-evolving application
requirements are unavoidable for securing the Group’s
position in the market.

The speed at which the pandemic can be contained will
have a huge bearing on how the world economy performs.
In the race between new virulent strains of the virus and
the vaccine roll-out, early victory is by no means assured.
The Group will review our overseas production resources
and consolidation might be required to improve future cost
efficiency even though short term loses is unavoidable.

Chairman’s Statement = & 3R &
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COMMITMENT &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our aim is to provide customers with products of competitive
prices, reliable quality, timely delivery and comprehensive
services. Efforts have been recognised and reflected in our
sales growth over the last decade. As usual and consistent
with before, we will continue to promote our corporate
image, and to increase our customer’s satisfactory level to
further enhance and solidify our world-class status.

In the coming years, we will continue to focus on and
invest in relevant technology and products while increasing
production capacity and flexibility to cater for the ever-
changing and upgrading of client’s demand from time to
time.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank
our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their long-term support and trust. | also wish to express
my deep appreciation to our management team and our
staff members for their diligent work, and members of the
Board of Directors for their significant contributions. We
will continue to work diligently with dedicated efforts in the
international battery platform; in heydays as in challenging
moments.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB9,631.4 million,
representing an increase of 15.2% from RMB8,362.7 million
for the corresponding period in 2019.

During the Period, revenue from batteries (and related items)
business amounted to RMB8,324.2 million, representing
an increase of 12.7% from RMB7,386.5 million for the
corresponding period in 2019. The increase in revenue
was mainly contributed by the PRC market and export
business. The volume delivered in terms of ton was
improved close to 20% as compared to the corresponding
period last year in which more than 75% was contributed
by the PRC market. Revenue from recycled lead business
amounted to RMB1,307.1 million, representing an increase
of approximately 34.6% from RMB971.2 million for the
corresponding period in 2019.

Although PRC economic performance was badly hit due to
the contraction in consumption, exports service and retail
sales in the first half of 2020, it has been quickly rebounded
after the pandemic was put under control for the rest of
the year. On the other hand, lots of countries continue
suffering from lockdown due to rising infection. The Group’s
China domestic and exports benefit from the recovery and
temporary uprising overseas demand but suffered from delay
in overseas projects which affected our overseas reserve
power battery business. Overall, all three categories of
battery business enjoyed better performance than expected.

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB4,187.1 million (2019: RMB3,913.1
million), representing an increase of 7.0% as compared
to the same period of last year. This accounted for
approximately 50.3% of the total revenue from batteries
sales as compared to 53.0% in 2019. The increment in sales
revenue of reserve power batteries amounted to RMB274.0
million (2019: RMB523.8 million) during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 & 51 3% & 2 47

Although the PRC reserve power battery business was
quickly rebounded and recovered, it was dragged by the
underperformance of overseas sales. In fact, the overall
2020 shipment in terms of ton was higher than 2019 by
15% in which most of the contribution was from the PRC
market. Since monthly average SMM lead price per ton was
lower due to unstable business environment, the industry
price-linked pricing mechanism on lead price resulted in
lower selling price per ton as compared to 2019, affecting
the value amount increment. During the Period, the Group
continued deploying huge resources in marketing and
research and development on capturing the most of the
opportunities from the rising 5G life cycle.

SLI batteries

Sales of SLI batteries for the Group during the Period
amounted to RMB2,883.1 million (2019: RMB2,470.5
million), representing an increase of 16.7% as compared to
the same period last year. This accounted for approximately
34.6% of the total revenue from batteries sales as compared
to 33.4% in 2019. The increment in sales revenue of SLI
batteries amounted to RMB412.6 million (2019: RMB71.6
million decrement) during the Period.

Benefit from the recovery in the PRC automobile production,
continuous enlarging domestic car ownership and rising
export demand due to overseas lockdown, total shipment
in terms of ton was higher than 2019 by 19%. Besides
traditional fossil fuel vehicles, the Group has worked hard
and become one of the major suppliers of domestic new
energy automobile lead-acid battery. Moving forward, more
resources, both marketing and research and development,
will be deployed to capture the opportunity of the era of
autonomous driving of smart cars.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020

EATENERELEBLECFILEE - (2
XBIHERRREMER - BERE —F
—EENERBEESE (UM BR_ZE-AF L
Ft15% - EFRBMOREFEMS - AR LB
BERNEMATHHmEREBRRTRBM T
B ARHENTXERBS EERHIERE
MEBR_T-NETH FETEEER
R -HA AEE#ERSHATERRAER
AREER - BB B R BARHSGHETEE T
HIORAHE o

EBB

AEBRBAMNBHENHEEREARARK
2,88318 &8 TT(ZE— T : ARM2,47058
B REAFREAEMNI6.7% - E(hEHHE
UT 25 EEEHIB4.6% » T —F— NFERIE33.4% °
HA - REBEMHHEERSIEMARK412.68
BT CE-NEF : BPARKT16BET) °

XERNTERREEENT  BARASEREER
B MARRBINHEEMEK L AFKE
Tt REEECAEGH R _E-NFS19% ° B
Bl OMEAEN - REE—BH2 R
R TEARMERAENBREE NN T ZMHE
BZ— c RERK » TR 23R
BTN ELZER  AREBRAEEDE
BUBSACPT A SRV E o



Management Discussion and Analysis & I

Motive power batteries

During the Period, motive power batteries business (which
includes but not limited to applications in electric vehicles,
electric forklifts and other battery-driven products) of the
Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,114.6 million (2019:
RMB833.9 million), representing an increase of 33.7% as
compared to last year. This accounted for approximately
13.4% of the total revenue from batteries sales as compared
to 11.3% in 2019. The increment in sales revenue of motive
power batteries amounted to RMB280.7 million (2019:
RMB37.7 million decrement) during the Period.

The recovery of business activities in the PRC and booming
export pushed up the demand for all area of applications
in motive power battery, especially for machine used in
logistic area. Total shipment in terms of ton was higher than
2019 by more than 30%. Besides lead-acid battery, the
Group has deployed lot of resources in the development of
various lithium models and will continue aiming at enlarging
applications and market share.

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sales of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB1,307.1 million (2019: RMB971.2 million) during the
Period, representing an increase of 34.6% as compared
to last year. The expansion and upgrade of recycling lead
production and environment protection measures has been
completed and production activity was back to normal in late
May of 2020. After resumption of full operation, output of the
Group’s recycling facilities increased significantly, generating
sales to third parties of more than RMB1 billion in the second
half of 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Sales network

The Group maintained to distribute its products to more
than 100 countries and regions across the world and has
established regional sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen,
Zhaoqing, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia,
Australia and other ASEAN countries, India, Sri Lanka,
USA and the EU, and United Kingdom. Together with the
domestic sales centers in the PRC, the Group has more
than 80 sales offices and centers around the world. As at 31
December 2020, the Group has over 700 dedicated sales
and marketing and related supporting employees.

Research and development (‘“R&D”)

In 2020, the Group continued to work closely with
international and domestic battery experts and research
institutions to perform research on new technologies and
develop new products. These products include product
series such as AGM VRLA batteries, VRLA-GEL battery, pure
lead batteries, UPS high-rate batteries, marine batteries,
railway batteries, start-stop batteries, automotive batteries,
motorcycle batteries, OPzV, OPzS, PzS, PzV and PzB
tubular plate batteries, golf cart batteries, scrubber sweeper
batteries and electric vehicle batteries etc. We will continue
to boost model yield, to increase overall running efficiency,
and to save unnecessary cost of maintenance of carrying a
bulky catalog, the catalog shelf will continue to slim down to
carry most up to date and cutting-edge best-selling models.

During the Period, we continued working on new models
of lead-acid and lithium-ion batteries and rolling out new
products tailor-made for applications in each of the network
power and motive market segment. New models of battery
catering for the era of autonomous driving of smart cars are
also on the way to be launched in the near future.

As at December 31, 2020, our battery R&D team of the
Group consists of more than 350 researchers and related
development & sampling technicians. The Group also owns
505 patents, with another 160 pieces in the process of
patent application as at the date of this announcement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I

Production Base

During the year, production volume of the Group’s two
new plants in Vietham continues ramping up. The designed
production capacity for both factories has been completed.
For the network power plant with motorcycle battery
production lines, occupation rate reached 90% while close
to 70% occupation rate for the automotive battery plant in
the last month of 2020.

Back in China, the production capacity for lead-acid plant
was expanded by 10% to cope with the current and future
growth and our lithium-ion batteries plant will expanded
gradually to cope with the business growth. Resources for
production capacity will be concentrated in the PRC in the
near future.

As mentioned earlier under the paragraph “Recycled Lead”,
the production activity was back to normal in late May of
2020. With production capacity of 200,000 tons, the plant
was running close to maximum capacity during the second
half of 2020.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major part of the product cost for the
Group’s battery production. According to Shanghai Metals
Market (“SMM”), the monthly average lead price per ton
fluctuated within the range of RMB14,038 to RMB15,949
during the Period, representing a change within the range of
-8.1% to 4.4% as compared with SMM monthly average of
RMB15,270 per ton in December 2019.

The monthly average SMM lead price per ton from January
to June 2020 was RMB14,312, a 6.3% reduction as
compared with SMM monthly average in December 2019,
reflected the weak demand caused by the business activities
lockdown in the PRC. The monthly average SMM lead price
per ton from July to December 2020 was RMB15,041, a
1.5% reduction as compared with SMM monthly average
in December 2019, reflected the demand is picked up and
price was gradually increasing.
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To cope with the potential pricing risk associated with the
fluctuation in future lead price, the Group has adopted
a price-linked pricing mechanism to minimise lead price
exposure. In addition, the Group’s centralised procurement
of raw materials enables it to trim down costs of raw
materials through favorable negotiations on bulk purchase
contracts.

Future Prospects

China’s gross domestic product (GDP) broke through the
100-trillion-yuan mark, achieving an increase of 2.3% in GDP
despite the impact of COVID-19. China is set to be the only
major economy to have posted positive growth in GDP in
2020. The PRC government announced that the country had
set a GDP target of more than 6% for 2021.

According to World Economic Outlook Report issued by IMF
in January 2021, the global economy is projected to grow
at 5.5% in 2021 while the prediction for China is 8.1%. This
indicates that China continues to be one of the major drivers
and contributors to global economy growth. The Group
believes that resources shall be twisted to the PRC market in
view of promising opportunities in all categories of battery. In
fact, action has been taken since 2019 with detailed plans to
be executed step by step.

On the other hand, global economic growth prediction is
based on vaccine approvals and hopes of a turnaround in
the pandemic in 2021. Renewed waves and new variants
of the virus pose concerns for the outlook. We will pay extra
attention to the changing macro and micro situations and
revise our strategies as and when situation calls for.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I

5G & Reserve Power Products

In 2020, the central government of China has proposed to
speed up the construction of new infrastructure such as 5G
networks and data centers. It is expected that in the next 2—3
years, 5G network construction will continue to advance,
gradually accomplishing wide-area coverage and consumer
related innovative applications for 5G will grow in scale from
2022 and onward.

As mentioned last year, China would put in between 600,000
to 800,000 stand-alone (SA) macro base stations in total
during 2020, possibly with the combination of various micro-
cells, Pico, Femto and large scale antennas systems (LSAS)
which collectively weight a much heavier loading on the
demand on back-up power system and creates a promising
outlook for the battery sector players. The construction of
around 600,000 5G base stations has been completed in
2020, resulting in around a total of 718,000 5G base stations
in the PRC. The total development of 5G networks is one of
the major goals in the PRC 14th Five-Year Plan. The number
of 5G base stations will continue to rise in 2021 and it is
estimated that 1 million new 5G base stations will be built
in 2021. On the basis of achieving deep coverage in cities
as first priority, it will accelerate and extend to county and
town level. The focus will be on the construction of micro
base stations and indoor distributed base stations. In 2021,
mobile and power grids enterprises will work together to
promote the in-depth coverage of 5G networks.

In 2021, 5G base stations will continue developing rapidly
and extend to ubiquitous data centers constructed in high
speed. China Mobile, Alibaba, Tencent, etc, being the
“core members” of the 5G infrastructure, have successively
announced future investment plans for data centers. Data
showed that by 2021, China’s big data market will reach
RMB492.03 billion. It is predicted that by 2025, the number
of global 0T devices will reach 41.6 billion and the amount
of data generated will reach 79.4ZB.
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The edge computing mode gives a better support to
high-density, large-bandwidth, and low-latency business
scenarios. An effective way is to build a business platform
on the edge of the network close to users, provide storage,
computing, and network resources. Some critical business
applications will be executed by the edge data centers
in order to reduce bandwidth and delay loss caused
by network transmission and multi-level forwarding. It
is estimated that by 2023, enterprises will have 50% of
new applications deployed on the edge while by 2024,
the number of edge applications will increase by 8 times.
Edge data centers will become the key direction for many
manufacturers to seize the market in the next step. Looking
forward, there will be many data centers with less than one
hundred equipment cabinets or even one equipment cabinet
become a micro data center, a data center used for edge
computing to support the demand for 5G “low latency, high
interaction” data application scenarios.

In 2020, the global market demand for lithium batteries
used for communication base stations is estimated to reach
22.8GWh. The 5G construction will rapidly push up the
demand for lithium batteries using in base stations from 2021
to 2025. It is estimated that the number of communication
towers will increase to 13 million by 2025, the global market
demand for lithium batteries for communication will reach
60GWh, and the market size will exceed RMB60 billion. We
expect the demand for lithium iron phosphate batteries used
in communications will continue to expand and the Group’s
lithium-ion battery plant will provide ground to capture new
opportunity in this area.

In 2020, the “fast forward button” for the new 5G
infrastructure development has been pressed. To get
prepared for this opportunity, the Group will continue pulling
resources in the development of 5G lead-acid and lithium
batteries for various applications. Our aggressive sales
teams are working hard on expanding our market share in
the PRC.
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SL/ batteries

In 2020, global automobile production and sales had
dropped sharply but the Chinese market only had slight
downward adjustment year-on-year. Among them, new
energy and commercial vehicles achieved growth of more
than 20%. Throughout the year, domestic car ownership
growing steadily reaching 280 million units, making China
the top of the world which provided great support to the
after-sales market of SLI battery. We believe PRC SLI battery
market is stable and recovering.

Nowadays, Leoch represent more than 20% of the market
share in commercial vehicle segment especially on batteries
used for supporting air conditioning system in heavy duty
automobile and we are one of the core suppliers to famous
manufacturers such as FAW, SAW, Sinotruk, Foton, Shaanxi
Heavy Duty Automobile etc..

Besides traditional fossil fuel vehicles, Leoch is one of
the major suppliers of domestic new energy automobile
brands such as BYD, Geely Auto, Nio, GWM, BAIO BJEV,
Xpeng, ONE, Weltmeister etc. An auxiliary lead-acid battery
is required in high-speed electric vehicles for low-voltage
power supply.

The Group has a very solid position in the PRC SLI battery
market and export OEM market. With the advent of the era
of autonomous driving of smart cars, an additional lead-
acid battery will be added to ensure the safety of the vehicle
under extreme conditions, which will further promote the
development of batteries and increment in sales.
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Motive power batteries

In China, low-speed electric vehicles have shown a rapid
development pattern along with the country’s economic
and social development. Leading manufacturers have all
put forward multiplier growing plan which will drive the
continuous development of the power battery industry. At
present, the domestic market for low-speed electric vehicles,
two-wheelers, and tricycles has reached 300 million units
and the corresponding power battery market has reached
more than RMB70 billion. It is expected that the market size
will enjoy healthy growth rate in coming years.

The Group’s motive power battery business unit always
quickly responds and adapts to market changes. We believe
our high-end batteries and differentiated management
strategy is the driving force to continuous future growth. In
2020, a variety of products was launched with enthusiastic
market responses. At the same time, the Group actively
deploys lithium motive power battery projects and
successively launched a number of models to the market.
In 2021, we will continue to deepen the franchise store
model, optimise the quality and quantity of agents, aiming
at improving product turnover efficiency and sales scale of
these sales channels in view of paving a solid foundation for
continuous growth.

International Market

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development (OECD) expects the global economy to
rebound from the coronavirus pandemic in 2021 as much as
4.2%. Although the outlook appears to be “vigorous,” nearly
all the world’s economies except China will shrink. Many
countries are currently fighting a resurgence of the virus but
the re-imposition of containment measures is denting the
economic rebound that had begun. The United States and
Europe are expected to contribute less to the recovery than
their weight in the global economy.
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The strength of the recovery is projected to vary significantly
across countries, depending on various factors such as
access to medical interventions, effectiveness of policy
support and exposure to cross-country spillovers etc.. The
Group will closely monitor the recovering pace and remain
prudent in managing our overseas resources.

Recycled Lead

In order to properly manage the environmental impact
of disposal of scrap lead-acid batteries and eliminate
the illegal recycling activities, the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China takes the
lead and together with nine ministries and commissions
participate in the promotion of “Pilot Work on Production
Enterprise Responsibility Extension” as one of the important
environment protection policies in the PRC. Leoch, being a
renowned enterprise, devoted in promoting green recycling
of lead, actively cooperates and responds to the new policy.
A dedicated scrap battery recycling department, which
utilises our existing sales network, has established a national
recycling network system for continuously promoting a
closed-loop of new and scrap battery sales and collection
business model.

With the completion of technical upgrades, our recycling
plant has adopted and mastered advanced oxygen-enriched
blowing furnace technology and low-temperature smelting
process in which fuel consumption, smoke and dust rate
can be reduced while quality can be ensured.

The closed-loop business model will contribute to constant
supply of scrap lead-acid batteries to the recycling plant in
which high production running rate can be accomplished for
the new designed production capacity of 200,000 tons per
year. The Group is confident that the output volume in 2021
will be higher than 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB9,631.4 million, representing an increase of 15.2%
from RMB8,362.7 million for the corresponding period in
2019. The profit for the Period amounted to RMB138.0
million as compared to RMB127.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, of which the profit attributable
to the owners of the parent amounted to RMB123.7 million
as compared to RMB132.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2019. Basic earnings per share for the Period was
RMBO0.09 (2019: RMBO0.10).

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from battery business increased by
12.7% from RMB7,386.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB8,324.2 million for the Period.

The Group’s revenue from recycled lead products increased
by 34.6% from RMB971.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB1,307.1 million for the Period, due
to the resumption of full operation.
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Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 by product category are set out
below:
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2020 2019
—EBTEF —T-NF
Percentage

Percentage Increase/ Percentage
Product category EmER Revenue share  (decrease) Revenue share
et BEX/ PTi&
i BOL (R =) Wz BO

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT
Reserve power batteries wAEM 4,187,085 43.5% 7.0% 3,913,062 46.8%
SLI batteries REEM 2,883,146 29.9% 16.7% 2,470,539 29.5%
Motive power batteries BN 1,114,583 11.6% 33.7% 833,851 10.0%
Others Hth 139,399 1.4% (17.5%) 169,054 2.0%
Sub-total /|NGE 8,324,213 86.4% 12.7% 7,386,506 88.3%
Recycled lead products (5] 2 84 2 1,307,149 13.6% 34.6% 971,227 11.6%
Others Hitb = o = 4,989 0.1%
Total ast 9,631,362 100% 15.2% 8,362,722 100%

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally
located in the PRC, Europe, Middle East and Africa
(‘EMEA”), Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than PRC). The
Group recorded different degrees of growth in the PRC,
Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than PRC) while sales in
EMEA slightly decreased.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by 22.8%
from RMB5,151.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to RMB6,326.0 million for the Period, representing
65.7% of the Group’s total revenue (2019: 61.6%). The
increase was partly due to strong demand from battery
business in the PRC during the Period and partly due to the
increased production output from recycled lead products.
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The following revenue information is based on the customer U TABZE T -_TFR_ZT—-NF+=-_A=
location for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019: T-BRBLEFEREPAMEMFEE SN KEE
¥
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NEF
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share  (decrease) Revenue share
Btk mEX/ FTih
U BOL (R D &) Wz Bk
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKETFIT
PRC # 6,325,994 65.7% 22.8% 5,151,752 61.6%
EMEA EMEA 1,390,185 14.4% (2.4%) 1,425,098 17.1%
Americas EM 1,022,021 10.6% 08% 1,013,657 12.1%
Asia-Pacific (other than AR
PRC) (TEEHRE) 893,162 9.3% 15.7% 772,215 9.2%
Total BEr 9,631,362 100% 15.2% 8,362,722 100%
Cost of Sales SHER A
The Group’s cost of sales increased by 14.9% from ASEMEERABREZ _T—hLF+_-_A=

RMB7,347.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB8,443.1 million for the Period, mainly because of the
increased sales volume from both recycled lead products
and battery business.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 17.0% from
RMB1,015.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB1,188.3 million for the Period, mainly due to the
strong demand from battery business in the PRC and the
resumption of full operation from recycled lead products.
The gross profit margin leveled for battery business while
increased for recycled lead products, resulting in the slight
increase of overall gross profit margin from 12.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to 12.3% for the Period. The
increase for recycled lead products was primarily a result of
resumption of full operation.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 37.6% from
RMB173.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB108.4 million for the Period. The decrease was
mainly due to the lack of recognition of gain on disposal of
a subsidiary and decreased government grants during the
Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
22.7% from RMBB392.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB481.2 million for the Period. The
increase was mainly caused by the increase in delivery costs
and sales commission.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased slightly
by 2.6% from RMB273.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB266.4 million for the Period. The
decrease was mainly due to better cost control.

R&D Expenses

R&D expenditure of the Group increased by 44.7% from
RMB119.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB172.7 million for the Period. The increase in expenditure
was mainly used for performance enhancement of existing
products and development of new products in all categories
during the Period.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 14.0% from
RMB41.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
RMB35.9 million for the Period, which was mainly due to the
lack of recognition of exchange loss during the Period.
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Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 20.0% from
RMB197.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB158.2 million for the Period as a result of decreased
average interest rate during the Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
profit before tax of RMB161.7 million for the Period as
compared to RMB158.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 24.1% from RMB31.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB23.7
million for the Period, mainly because assessable profits from
the lead-acid battery business decreased while profit from
the recycled lead products was not subject to tax during the
Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB138.0 million (2019: RMB127.5 million) for the
Period, of which the Group recorded profit attributable to the
owners of the parent of RMB123.7 million (2019: RMB132.6
million) for the same period.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets of RMB596.4 million (2019: RMB65.5 million). The
increase was mainly due to reclassification of a term loan
as a non-current liability as at 31 December 2020 following
the renewal of the term loan facility. The Group’s current
assets mainly consist of inventories, trade receivables, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, cash and bank balances, prepayments, other
receivables and other assets. The Group’s current liabilities
mainly consist of trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals, and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,776.9 million (2019:
RMB1,817.0 million). Inventories increased in recycled lead
products while decreased in battery business, resulting in
a slight overall decrease during the Period. The decrease in
battery business was due to better inventory control.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily related to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the battery business. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had trade receivables of RMB2,419.7
million (2019: RMB2,306.9 million). The increase in trade
receivables was in line with the increase in sales from battery
business during the Period.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other
Assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB276.1 million (2019: RMB162.0 million), increasing
by 70.4%. The increase was mainly because the Group
increased its prepayments for raw materials due to
expectation of strong demand in early of 2021.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to
its purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had trade and bills payables
of RMB2,139.4 million (2019: RMB2,009.7 million). The
increase in trade and bills payables was partly due to the
resumption of full operation of recycled lead products and
partly due to the commencement of lithium battery operation
in the PRC.

Y
1\

=

\

=

FEENAEBERBEEMNEF —ExZ 5
Do MNZEBEZTE+-_A=+—8  KEEHF
EARK1 776 9BBL(ZTE—NF : ARK
1,817.088D)MNFE - HIKHERMNTEL N
MEMEBNTERLD  BRHARNBEFER
WL BHMEBNEERD AR EZEE
HFE -

B 5 RWFE

REBENESRURBIEZHDERET, (X E
BREEBMEBEP) EmMMWERNIBERR - K=
TFF+ZA=+—H xEBEEBESEK
FEARE2,4197TABT(ZE—NF : AR
2,306.98 &) - B S RYGKIBE NEIRNES
FEHEREEMN—B -

ANFRIER At EWREAREBEE

AEBENENRBEZTEZRBERMEER - 1
—E-ZTF+_A=+—H8 AEBBFENMNK
B BEmEYREREMEEARKE276.18
EX(ZZE—NF : AR¥162.08E7T) * 0
70.4% M EERRTBEH T —FF V%
KoaSh - AEBREMIEMN T RM B TEN KB
FEN °

BEZRAFERENRE

AEENEZRNFBALENRBEETRZRESR
HEEMBORMHAER R-_F—-hAEF+_H
=t—B AEBFESENFELRENRE
SARE213048 BT (ZT—NF  ARK
2,009.7E &) - BHENKARENRIRIE
me MoBEREREEMNELEZEIKES
B R AR EFBRRE T EEMER

TECTFEFY | BtEBETERLAE

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis &

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, tax payables
other than current income tax liabilities and accruals for
payroll and benefits for its employees. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had other payables and accruals of
RMB990.0 million (2019: RMB854.8 million), the increase
was mainly due to increase in payables for purchase of fixed
assets and advances received from customers.

Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB520.0 million
(2019: RMB398.1 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB596.4 million (2019: RMB65.5 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB848.5 million (2019: RMB804.8 million). As at 31
December 2020, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,303.3 million (2019: RMB2,306.2 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB542.4
million (2019: RMB36.2 million) which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Vietnamese Dong, and the effective interest
rates of which as of 31 December 2020 were 1.00% to
7.90% (2019: 1.50% to 8.70%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits, inventory
and trade receivables. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 25.4% (2019: 26.6%), which was
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as at
the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of the
PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture by the Group during the
Period.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
investment with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total
assets.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 14,553
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB849.2 million for the Period (2019: RMB805.3
million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. DONG Li, aged 54, is an executive director, chairman
of the Board and nomination committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and founder of the Company. Mr.
DONG has been appointed as executive director since 27
April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Mr. DONG is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He
is also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. DONG also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. DONG obtained an EMBA degree from National
University of Singapore in 2015. Mr. DONG graduated from
Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi’'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Mr. DONG also holds the positions of part-time professor
of Shanghai University and visiting professor of the Xi’an
Polytechnic University.

Mr. DONG personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2020.
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Ms. YIN Haiyan, aged 45, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. YIN has been
appointed as executive director since 30 July 2018.

Ms. YIN graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. YIN joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the finance
department. She was subsequently promoted to deputy
general manager of administration department, general
manager, vice president of finance department, president,
and finally to her current position, in which her responsibilities
focus on strategic planning and policy development and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration, and
leading the management in the day-to-day running of the
Group’s business in accordance with the business plans and
within the budgets approved by the Board.

Ms. YIN personally held 1,650,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2020.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit
committee and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. CAO holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. CAO is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. CAO personally held 800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2020.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit, aged 76, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. LAU retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).

Currently, Mr. LAU is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is
an independent non executive director of Royale Home
Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1198), Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) and Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893). The shares
of Chinlink International Holdings Limited, Royale Home
Holdings Ltd., Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited,
Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd are listed on
the Main Board.
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Mr. LAU personally held 800,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2020.

Dr. NAN Xinsheng, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee as well as the nomination committee on 16
September 2020.

Dr. NAN obtained a doctor degree in business administration
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006, a master
degree in management jointly issued by Fudan University
and Norwegian School of Management in 1999 and degree
in microwave communications the Beijing Institute of Post
and Telecommunications (currently known as the Beijing
University of Post and Telecommunications) in 1982.

Dr. NAN served as the lecturer and the vice principal of
Shandong School of Posts and Telecommunications from
1982 to 1995, a deputy director of Shandong Telecom
Technical Assistance Center from 1995 to 1997, the director
of the Post and Telecommunications Bureau of Rizhao City,
Shandong Province from 1997 to 1999, deputy general
manager of Guoxin Paging Co., Ltd. as well as chairman
of Guomai Communication Co., Ltd. from 1999 to 2000.
Besides, Dr. NAN served as the general manager of different
departments (including the Planning Department) of China
United Network Communications Group Co., Ltd. from 2000
to 2018 and served as director and the chief strategy officer
of Fujian Start Group Co (stock code 600734), a company
listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange from 2018-2019. Since
2019, he serves as the chief strategy officer of Beijing [fudata
Information Technology Co. Ltd.

Dr. NAN personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2020.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 56, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. CHOW has over 32 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in
Hong Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises.
Mr. CHOW obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration with double majors in Accounting and
Management Information Systems in 1986 and a Master’s
degree in Accounting in 1987 from the University of Hawaii
in the United States. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a CFA charter
holder and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Emst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries
using lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery
market does not grow at the rate we expect or at
all, or if lead-acid technology is replaced by another
technology, our business, profitability and future
prospects may be materially and adversely affected;

Report of the Directors

ESE®RE

E=ZeMAEZBRCKRALARARBEI R KESR
MEBMERAARRERZESEREE
EEF+_A=1+—RHUEFENFERER
REMBmE -

TEXBREEMED

KRB EBEBRAIRELER - KARKEB
NEIRN ZE_TEFE+_A=+—HHNETEEK
SRS IRERMITE -

FRILGBE D AE| 7 By A& B RIR AT E N B
B MiFEs o

TEERETHBREE

AEBEEKEEMS ROAR R THBARER
REFEARENMBIN KBRS - £RE
Bt FEE N AR ER  AEE-BE®AN
RS R R NHAAEE - AT 8RR
FEANEE - FEAKENTERR KL TH
BAREB AR T3

1) HRANKRSEKRBH KB ERBERMOHE
A e B R B T IS AR IR R MR R
BIER  RBARBBER - N EER M
WEMEAMEL - HPINETS - BFEE
LAZRAMRAIGEEXINERTMTE

TECTFEFY | BtEBETERLAE

37



38

Report of the Directors 2 5 & R &5

Due to the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”), a series of precautionary and control
measures have been implemented across the
world such as heightening of hygiene and epidemic
prevention requirements in factories and offices and
quarantine of certain residents so on. It may adversely
affect our business and overall short-term performance.
The Group will closely monitor the situation and
make timely response and adjustments in the future if
necessary;

The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government, any global economic downturn,
or changes in the economic, political and social
conditions in the PRC may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results
of operations could be adversely affected if these
customers reduce their orders or cease to order from
us;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could
be affected if our major suppliers are not able to
supply raw materials as scheduled. More information
on our major suppliers is set out on page 58 under
the heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” of the
Report of Directors.
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These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 87 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 88 to 89.

To reserve fund for business development, the Board does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK2.00 cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing and an analysis of the performance of the Group
during the year using key financial performance indicators
are set out in the headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 30 of the annual report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE (ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimise the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralises
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide
ontime reading is connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations by the Group.
The Group holds high standards of operating practices
and complies with the relevant standards. The Group has
stringent requirements to maintain high levels of quality
control and responsible business practices. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
on a timely basis to ensure that adjustments are made in our
procedures and operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers
and Customers

The Group believes that employees are important asset
and provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees to be
up to prevailing market standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides employee training programs to polish their skills
and knowledge and a number of staff activities to enhance
employees’ sense of belonging and to help create a friendly
and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 92 to 93 and in note
33 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB1,170.5 million (2019: approximately
RMB1,100.3 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 287 to 288 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. NAN Xinsheng (appointed on 16 September 2020)
Dr. ZHU Ping (resigned on 16 September 2020)
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. YIN
Haiyan and Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages
31 to 36 in the annual report of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or entity connected with the
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year, nor had there been any contract of significance entered
into between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in the
shares of the Company which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that
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and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for BT :
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
Number and Number and
class of securities ~ class of securities
subject to options  subject to options
granted under the  granted under the Approximate
Number and Pre-IPO Share Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest class of securities* Option Scheme Scheme Total shareholding®
EREER
NEREARRE IREBRETE
SEREERE RHMERE
FRNESE A FRNESHE
 E4:2 BiME #EHEREH K& RE3H @t BREREALO
Mr. DONG Li Beneficial Owner 1,009,513,0001 (L) - - 1,009,513,000 74.36%
EXfE ERHEAA
Ms. YIN Haiyan Beneficial Owner - 150,000? (1) 1,500,0009 (1) 1,660,000 0.12%
HigEat EnfEA
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - - 800,0004 (L) 800,000 0.06%
B EnfiEA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - - 800,000 (L) 800,000 0.06%
EE St EREAA

*

Shares.
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Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000 shares
held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 150,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 800,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 800,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,357,644,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2020.

SHARE OPTION

A. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentive or reward to
selected participants for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the
Company and enabling the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees. The number of shares
which may be issued pursuant to the outstanding
share options (i.e. options which have been granted
but not yet lapsed or exercised) under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020 was
6,490,000 shares (representing approximately 0.48%
of the Company’s total issued share capital as at that
date). No further options can be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.
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B. Share Option Schemes

U)

(i)

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by
all shareholders of the Company on 14 October
2010, the Company approved and adopted
another share option scheme (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) (as amended at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 18
May 2018) for the purpose of providing incentive
or reward to selected participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Company and for such other
purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options
(i.e. options which have been granted but not
yet lapsed or exercised) under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020 was
38,080,000 shares (representing approximately
2.80% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at that date). The 2010 Share Option Scheme
expired on 13 October 2020.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 30 October 2020,
the Company approved and adopted another
share option scheme (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to or potential contribution to the
Group and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and for
such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which
may be issued pursuant to the outstanding share
options (i.e. options which have been granted
but not yet lapsed or exercised) under the 2020
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020
was zero.

Details of the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the 2020
Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following person (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

FERRHOBRODERE AR

RZZEZFTF+_A=+—H ' TIAL(TE
BARREZRFEZTHAB)RKROFHEES%
A EBERER AR RIREE S KB EHIZE336
BEENEZMOESZRAR

Number and Approximate
class of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest securities* shareholding®
IR & EEME BEHERERN HBMOERASL®
Master Alliance Investment Limited™ Beneficial Owner 1,009,513,000 (L) 74.36%

BEmEBA

*

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1) Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,009,513,000 shares
held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. DONG Li.

2) This is based on 1,357,644,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2020, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:

A.

Connected transaction which is
exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement

Leases with Mr. Dong Li and his Associates

The Company and Mr. DONG Li (our controlling
shareholder and executive Director holding about
74.36% of the issued share capital of the Company
and thus a connected person) entered into a new
master leasing agreement dated 15 February 2019
(the “2019 Master Leasing Agreement”) and
a supplemental Master Leasing Agreement (the
“Supplemental Master Leasing Agreement”) dated
6 March 2019. Pursuant to the 2019 Master Leasing
Agreement, members of the Group will lease from
Mr. DONG Li and/or his associates properties for
the use by members of the Group. The 2019 Master
Leasing Agreement is for a term of three years from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. Upon expiry
of the term, the 2019 Master Leasing Agreement will,
subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, be
renewed for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The Group has entered into the following
tenancies within the ambit of the 2019 Master
Leasing Agreement and the Supplemental Master
Leasing Agreement: (a) a tenancy agreement dated
24 December 2018 with Shenzhen Marshell Power
Supply Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Marshell”), a company
owned by Mr. Dong and Mr. Dong’s associates,
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to lease Units E1-E4, E6-E7, E14-E63, E72-E112,
E116-E135, E138-E145 of Xin Bao Hui Building, No.
2061 Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, the PRC from Shenzhen Marshell, which
is used as the Group’s office in Shenzhen, for a term
commencing from 24 December 2018 and expiring on
23 December 2021 at a monthly rent of RMB72,012,
exclusive of management fees, water and electricity
charges; (b) a tenancy agreement dated 24 December
2018 with Shenzhen Marshell to lease Units E8, E9,
E148, E149 of Xin Bao Hui Building, No. 2061 Nanhai
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, the
PRC from Shenzhen Marshell, which is used as the
Group’s office in Shenzhen, for a term commencing
from 24 December 2018 and expiring on 23 December
2021 at a monthly rent of RMB2,777, exclusive of
management fees, water and electricity charges; and
(c) a tenancy agreement dated 15 February 2019 with
Eastern International LLC (“Eastern International”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Dong and Mr. Dong’s
associate, to lease a building Located at 19751
Descartes Foothill Ranchs, County of Orange, State of
California, the United States from Eastern International,
which is used as the Group’s office and warehouse
in the United States, for a term commencing from 1
January 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2021
at a monthly rent of US$49,900 in 2019 with annual
increment based on a prevailing market rate in 2020
and 2021, respectively, exclusive of security deposit,
association fees and other outgoings.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
2 September 2019, the Group acquired the property
at 14/F (Units 1401 to 1409), Block A, Tower 6, Zhong
Gang Plaza, Expo Bay, Fuyong Airport New City South,
Baoan District, Shenzhen, PRC as its headquarter
and the Group’s operation has been relocated there.
Accordingly, the two tenancy agreements with
Shenzhen Marshell dated 24 December 2018 were
no longer necessary and were terminated on 30
September 2020 by mutual agreement.
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Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

(i)

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 13 October 2015 and
entered into a new master agreement dated
16 October 2018 (the “2018 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will sell to Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’s associates will purchase from
members of the Group, products including lead
acid batteries, mainly start lighting and ignition
batteries, reserve power batteries and motive
power batteries, and related parts. The products
to be sold and purchased under the 2018 Master
Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same
type of products is sold by us to independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The
2018 Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2019
and ending on 31 December 2021. Upon expiry
of the term, the 2018 Master Sales Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for
the transactions under the 2018 Master Sales
Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2021 have been set at RMB138.0
million, RMB172.0 million and RMB215.0 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the aggregate amount received and
receivable by the Group under the 2018 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB79.6
million.
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(i)

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 13 October 2015 and
entered into a new master agreement dated 16
October 2018 (the “2018 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’'s associates will sell to members
of the Group, products including battery cases,
parts, models, chargers and electronic products
for the manufacturing of the Group’s battery
products or sale as accessories of the Group’s
battery products. The products to be sold and
purchased under the 2018 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type
of products is sold to the Group by independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The 2018
Master Purchase Agreement is for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2019 and
ending on 31 December 2021. Upon expiry of
the term, the 2018 Master Purchase Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for
the transactions under the 2018 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2021 have been set at RMB41.0
million, RMB55.0 million and RMB72.0 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2020 the aggregate amount paid and payable
by the Group under the 2018 Master Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB31.4 million.
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The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
under paragraph B above and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in relation to the aforementioned connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the terms of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 7 May 2020 and entered into,
among other parties, the Company as borrower, several of
its subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$100,000,000 (the
“Loan”) is made available to the Group for (i) refinance the
facility agreement entered into by the Company on 8 May
2017 and (i) financing the working capital of the Group.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 15%, 15%,
15%, 15% and 40% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: (i) Mr. DONG Li (“Mr. DONG”) does
not or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of
the beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least 51%
of the voting right, free from any security; (i) Mr. DONG
does not or ceases to have management control over the
Company; and (iii) Mr. DONG is not or ceases to be the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, it will
be an event of default under the Facility Agreement, in which
event all or any part of the commitments under the Loan
may be cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the
Loan may immediately become due and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Mr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(together the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a
deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
with the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company
and each member of the Group that, among other things,
he/it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly
or indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with
the business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
and were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2020, none of the Directors is considered to
have interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications.

The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group is
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

8.6%
27.5%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

— the largest customer 6.5%
— five largest customers in aggregate 17.3%

None of the directors, their respective close associates (within
meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers and customers.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 25 May 2021, to Friday, 28 May 2021, (both days
inclusive (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attending and vote at the AGM,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 24 May 2021.
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Report of the Directors 2 5 & R &5

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As from 31 December 2020 to the date of this annual
report, save as disclosed herein, the Board is not aware
of any significant events that have occurred which require
disclosure herein.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2020.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s shares.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020, nor were there any
proceeds brought forward from any issue of equity securities
made in previous financial years.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company hasn’t changed in its auditor in any of the
proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

i %

BEARE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

The Company has complied with the required standards
set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company is in line with expectations of
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020

B2 ZF+_A=+—HIFE E=F
EMAERALEEARE -

AEBBNREHSTENEEER
HEREaRREAECEEENEEL -

- AR

BREH
BE-T-SF+-A=+-ALEE A2

BB E AR BIPT S$R 14 PR (> X B R <F BIE
P2 TERRAE o

ARARETRHEEREHI 2 EEXERTA
Z BRI XES o

58 I 4 B AR E

EEER

a8

\I/

ESSBEETRKRRITECEERTH - UE
REGEERTERRA - A LR A8
148051 89 1 3% B VR 57 BI &Y <F BI 6 T K2 58 il 4% B8
MEMETHAERE]  URARARNEERERT
MAERRLKREENHTER -

EZERR ARANBE-_Z_TF+_H
=B IEREFE -BETHRN LHR A
B4HINEEE AT REEERRENM
B SRR



Corporate Governance Report 1t % & & 3R &

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Mr. DONG Li (chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”)) and Ms. YIN Haiyan (chief
executive officer).

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. NAN Xinsheng (appointed
on 16 September 2020) and Dr. ZHU Ping (resigned on 16
September 2020).

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, 16
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 3 Nomination
Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 2 general meeting were held.

Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meetings
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are set out below:

Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/
Number of Audit Nomination Remuneration Number of
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings!"
Exg/ Exg/ BERg/ ERE/  HERE/
EXg® EHZEE® REZEE  FMZzEE RRXE
Exps gL R g1 G g1 C R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. DONG Li EXEE 16/16 - 33 4/4 1/2
Ms. YIN Haiyan Sl 16/16 = = = 1/2
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan EEEE 6/16 2/2 - 4/4 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit EHREE 6/16 22 3/3 4/4 2/2
Dr. NAN Xinsheng? A AEELT 1/16 02 013 - 0/2
Dr. ZHU Ping® KirELo 3/16 112 2/3 - 1/2
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Notes:

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
May 2020 and the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 October 2020.

2 Dr. NAN Xinsheng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 16 September 2020.

©)) Dr. ZHU Ping resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 16 September 2020.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established three
Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various authority and duties set out in their
respective terms of reference. All Directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
requirements in relation to the Company’s businesses, and
to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions
and duties as a director of a listed company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. YIN Haiyan, Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. NAN Xinsheng (appointed
on 16 September 2020) and Dr. ZHU Ping (resigned on 16
September 2020) participated in this continuous professional
development mainly by reading various materials regarding
directors’ responsibilities, prevention of breaching Listing
Rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 30 July 2018, Ms. YIN
Haiyan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have
been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are available to shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts; (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board
of on the remuneration of non-executive directors of the
Company; (f) to review and approve the remuneration payable
to the executive directors and senior management of the
Company for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with relevant contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and
approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director
of the Company or any of his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAQO Yixiong Alan and Mr.
LAU Chi Kit, the latter two being independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings to discuss, review, analyse
and consider any change of the remuneration policy of the
Company and performed all functions as disclosed above.
The records of attendance of committee members, by name,
at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 4/4
Mr. DONG Li 4/4
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan 4/4

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board; (b) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c)
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Nomination policy and process for the independent non-
executive Directors

The nomination committee of the Company will consider
the structure, size and diversity (including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, length of service,
skills, knowledge and experience etc.) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. All appointments to the Board are based
on meritocracy and the candidates will be assessed based
on criteria such as education background and relevant
skills and experience for consideration of the operation of
the Board as a whole, with a view to maintaining a sound
balance of the Board’s composition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LAU Chi Kit, Dr. NAN Xinsheng (appointed
on 16 September 2020) and Dr. ZHU Ping (resigned on 16
September 2020), the latter three being independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. DONG Li is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings and performed all functions
as disclosed above. The attendance records of each
member at the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. DONG Li 3/3
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 3/3
Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(appointed on 16 September 2020)
0/3
Dr. ZHU Ping
(resigned on 16 September 2020)
2/3
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All Board members’ appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. According to the Board
Diversity Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in
2013, selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(orofessional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, Dr. NAN Xinsheng (appointed on 16 September 2020)
and Dr. ZHU Ping (resigned on 16 September 2020) all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial management
expertise.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2020 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2019 annual audit and 2020
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2019 annual and 2020 interim
financial statements, results announcement and
report, the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2

Dr. NAN Xinsheng
(appointed on 16 September 2020)
0/2
Dr. ZHU Ping
(resigned on 16 September 2020)
1/2

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are met
and applicable accounting standards are complied with.
The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 78 to 86 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB2.8 million and RMBO0.4 million,
respectively.

Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends
to the Shareholders of the Company by way of (i) cash or (ii)
shares. The profit distribution policy of the Company shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations
and earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong; or

i) by emalil to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2020, and the Company’s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.
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The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating
that he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials.
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B M % BED S

Ernst & Young TR G HHEIE AT Tel B 5%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EREPIRAFER Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue = KE22%E ey.com
ﬁﬂ( Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of BETEBEEMERAR
Leoch International Technology Limited EHERR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to
286, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

FARELSIEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEERREZEER

Inventory provision

FERE

The Company is principally engaged in the
manufacture, development and sale of lead-acid
batteries and other related items. Since technology
develops rapidly in the lead-acid battery industry, the
Group’s inventories were subject to significant risk of
obsolescence. Significant management’s judgements
and estimates were involved in determining the amount
of provision of slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
As the inventory balance amounting to RMB1,777
million was significant to the Group, which represented
20% of the total assets of the Group, and the provision
of inventories was made based on subjective estimates
and assumptions concerning future consumption or
sales of inventories, we identified this as a key audit
matter.
ERFF2NFEERE  FAEMEE RIS LHM
HAER BRWRESOCRMERAR - B
B FEAXBEAMBRER BEFEIREFE
FetiRBE RN PREBE ZEXRHE &G
o HREEASREARKI777TEELY BE5E
MEDEBEKXN & BEXEEEREZ20% BFE
BEDEREBEEBBRERIFEEHER I TBMAR
RBRIEL - R EFGUEP RRAREZEE -

The disclosures about inventories are included in notes
3 and 20 to the financial statements.

BT 2 REH N B RRMEIN20 -
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision.
EECTHERERABNMEERHLREFTSE MGt
BEREBTHEIEF -

We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared by
management for the purpose of identifying the slow-
moving and obsolete inventories by checking, on a
sampling basis, the sales orders and agreements, and
assessing the estimated sales taking into account the
previous estimations, the historical evidence supporting
underlying assumptions and current market conditions.
EEEMEEREERRECIHERTER - EHERBHE
RHHE ER AT FHELRETE F UKER
FRIEG - XFHEARKRZELBREKEIRITH R
fhETiHERE -

We also checked on a sampling basis the ageing
reports of inventories and the production records and
sales of inventories made after the year end.
EENCHEEZREMERFREZ EELERIE
H 2 FEHEETHmEARR

For the net realisable value of the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories identified, we checked samples of
recent sales invoices for the value.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELER

FARELSIEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNEERREZEE

Impairment of trade receivables

EZ BN AR E

The trade receivable balance was significant to
the Group, which amounted to RMB2,464 million
and represented approximately 27% of the total
assets as at 31 December 2020. Assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivables involves a high level
of management judgement and estimation. During
the year, management used a provision matrix to
calculate expected credit losses for receivables. The
matrix was initially based on the Group’s historical
default rates, and specific factors that management
considered in the estimation of the rates including
the type of customers, ageing of the balances and
recent historical payment patterns. Management then
calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information, such as
forecasted economic conditions.
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The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and
21 to the financial statements.

BRBEEN M @R EIR21

We evaluated the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses (“ECLS”).
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We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items in
the trade receivable ageing report were classified with
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the report with the relevant sales invoices.
EEREAEEFBLBREDTEEL EEEHE
BR MLESRUGIERRBRETNEASEHA
BE R EREARR -

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by
(i) evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimations, including testing
the accuracy of historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates were appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information; and (iii) examining the
actual losses recorded during the current financial year.
EEERUTHANERBEEFERRBZR RN
(FIEEREREIAREEREREREREFRAR
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We checked the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED
IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 % £ B 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continueq)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 #Z & B 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 % £ B 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M A= 32 43’%

g‘ﬂhi =] jﬁ f
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZE-ZTF+_A=+—RHILFE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihE=a AR¥TT AREFTT
REVENUE W = [ 9,631,362 8,362,722
Cost of sales SHERAR (8,443,083) (7,347,336)
Gross profit EH 1,188,279 1,015,386
Other income and gains H YA KWz 5 108,360 173,784
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (481,179) (392,029)
Administrative expenses TR (266,359) (273,530)
Research and development costs IELIDRIN 6 (172,720) (119,347)
Impairment losses on assets BERERFE 6 (20,675) (6,013)
Other expenses HMAX 7 (35,874) 41,717)
Finance costs B 75 K AR 8 (158,180) (197,772)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B AT 6 161,652 158,762
Income tax expense Frigfim sz 1 (23,688) (31,229)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEEER 137,964 127,533
Attributable to: AT ATFE -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE PN 123,732 132,586
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR b = 14,232 (5,053)
137,964 127,533
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAGEBEERZEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhEERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic AR RMBAE#0.09 RMBARK¥0.10
Diluted e RMBAR#¥0.09 RMBAR#0.10
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEZEHR=ER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHILFE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
hE=2 AR® T AR®ET T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 137,964 127,533
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ Hfthi2E ik
Other comprehensive income that REEZBEETH»EE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BEamEMmeEkEs
in subsequent periods:
Debt investments at fair value through A BEZE ST A HA
other comprehensive income: EEWBENEBHBRE -
Changes in fair value RAEEY 22 (776) 1,357
Income tax effect Fristis & 30 194 (339)
(582) 1,018
Exchange differences on translation of ~HREEINEFEHE N =58
foreign operations 1,325 2,173
Net other comprehensive income that ~ REER BRI EFH D EE
may be reclassified to profit or loss bi=Fay o= e il
in subsequent periods FRR 743 3,191
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 4z & & H W & &

Year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+_A=+—HILLHFE

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR®T AR®ET T
Other comprehensive income that will  REEZ BT~ EFH D
not be reclassified to profit or loss in ZERMEMEE
subsequent periods: g
Equity investments designated at BEERARBEEY
fair value through other FFAEMEE KA
comprehensive income: TSR E -
Changes in fair value NREEE (541) 34,513
Income tax effect Fristis & 30 10,328 (7,505)
9,787 27,008
Net other comprehensive income that REEEEIR T @ EH DA
will not be reclassified to profit or loss ~ ZE Bz A H M2 E IR
in subsequent periods FRE 9,787 27,008
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ FEEHfh2EKE -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MR E 10,530 30,199
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEHUNRELE
FOR THE YEAR 148,494 157,732
Attributable to: AT AL R :
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZFEPN 134,569 162,002
Non-controlling interests 3FT A& HE 2= 13,925 (4,270)
148,494 157,732
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a BRI &

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® TR ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& 14 2,371,715 2,151,252
Investment property WEY 15 356 367
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16(a) 147,424 190,973
Goodwill GRS 17 2,213 10,636
Other intangible assets H i B 18 715,537 670,083
Equity investments designated at fair ~ EEIZ AL BEZ ST A
value through other comprehensive H b U R e e 1
income BE 19 143,027 164,709
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUKEEW % - = KR 1&
property, plant and equipment HBEXNHET & 36,656 140,204
Deferred tax assets FEIEFR IR E B 30 61,724 51,293
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 3,478,652 3,380,417
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 20 1,776,904 1,816,966
Trade receivables B SR FIA 21 2,419,676 2,306,871
Debt investments at fair value through A BEZ ST A HA
other comprehensive income FHRGENERIRE 22 197,128 134,784
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - EfhFEUERIA
other assets MEMEE 23 276,059 162,043
Financial assets at fair value through DA BEEHT AERN
profit or loss STREE 24 75,912 65,603
Structured bank deposits HERMRITER 25 - 59,793
Pledged deposits [ YEE 26 461,353 464,146
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEY 26 387,148 280,903
Total current assets RBEERE 5,594,180 5,291,109
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B O RNRIBRENRE 27 2,139,389 2,009,701
Other payables and accruals HM RN RIBERETER 28 990,006 854,809
Financial liabilities at fair value through A F BEE St ABZEH
profit or loss SRBE 24 2,679 5,457
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITEE 29 1,760,846 2,269,996
Income tax payable NGRS 104,841 85,627
Total current liabilities mEBERE 4,997,761 5,225,590
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 596,419 65,519
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBDASE
LIABILITIES 4,075,071 3,445,936
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 42 &

B 75 AR 5 AR

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®TR AR®ETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITEE 29 542,438 36,190
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 30 55,503 64,238
Deferred government grants I DT R A 72,095 59,770
Other liabilities Hih B & 16(b) 5,099 11,549
Total non-current liabilities EmMEBBEMATE 675,135 171,747
Net assets BEFE 3,399,936 3,274,189
EQUITY Eé
Equity attributable to owners of NEEB AR
the parent
Share capital & 7 31 116,224 116,213
Reserves s 33 3,123,402 3,001,533
3,239,626 3,117,746
Non-controlling interests eI S 160,310 156,443
Total equity M AR 3,399,936 3,274,189
Dong Li Yin Haiyan
3 EN g 3%
Director Director
EFE )
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERERBE R
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRABEAER
Share Share Far  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option value reseve  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capltal account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profts Totdl  interests equity
D EX
hE RPEEE  ANEE ERERE EERE ivHBe  RBRE  REEA B HEREE  EROE
RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Note (oted1)  (oted?)  (ote33)  (note3  (noted3)  (note3d  (note33)
M (WS (R4 (WS (WEse)  (Hasy  (Wisy)  (Ws9)
At1 January 2019 R-E-7E-A-H 116213 1,148,909 272,534 32,823 34,776 139,194 23129 1209349 2976927 196,977 3,173,904
Prot forthe year REREH = - - - - - - 1RSI0 B0y 1275
Other comprehensive income for the year: - AEFE 2 EkE :
Changes in fair value of equity ERELALEEESIA
investments designated t fair velue Ath2 EhmmiERt
through other compreensive RENAABERD
income, net of tax il - - - - 27008 - - -0 - 008
Changes in fai value of debt MrEBERDIHALMEE
nvestments at far value through Yt ERRAL L BE
other comprehensive income, 29 MhfE
net of tax - - - - 1,018 - - - 1,018 - 1,018
Exchange diferences on translation of BN EBMELZE
foreign operations - - - - - - 1,390 - 1,390 83 2,173
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2 AR 2E = = = = 2,026 = 1300 132586 162,002 (am0) 157,732
Transfer of far value resenve of equity ~ EERA A BEEHHA
investments atfai value through other - £ 2ERE MBI
comprehensive income REMLNS EERE 19 S S = = (4.496) S S 4,496 S S S
Lapss of share options BREEK - - - (809) - - = 809 = = =
Distrbution to a non-controling FiERF-BEERBRE
shareholder - - - - - - - - - 36,264) (36,264)
Appropriations to reserves BiEEE - - = = = 6,425 S (6,429) S S S
Equity-setfled share option amangements ~ biER £E fBRER - S S 2,701 S S S S 2,701 S 2,701
Finel 2018 chidend peid BHZT-N\ERERE - - - - - - <Y LY. ] - ;s
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE+ZA=1-8 116213 1,148,909 272,534 34,715 58,306 145,619 24519 1316931 3,117,746 156,443 3.274,189
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #r

AN
=

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRRAARE
Share Share Fair  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option value reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account  reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
M EX
Bx ROEEER AKEE BRERE EEEE iTHRE  RBEE  REEH @i FERER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETr ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETz
Note  (noted1)  (noted?)  (note33)  (note33)  (note33)  (note33)  (note 33)
ME o (MEESN) (M2 (WESY)  (WEs3)  (WAsY)  (Wiss)  (Wisy)
At1 January 2020 R-Z-%E£-F-H 116,213 1,148,909 272,534 34,715 58,306 145,619 24519 1316931 3,117,746 156,443 3,274,189
Proft forthe year REREH - - - - - - - BTR 18T 422 197964
Other comprehensive income for the year: - AEF 2 EkE : = = = = = = = = = = =
Changes in fair value of equity KRR EEESIA
investments designated at fair vaue A2 EhmmERLE
through other comprehensive RENALBERD
income, net of tax Bl = = = = 9,787 = = = 9,787 = 9,787
Changes in air value of debt BAREREHIAL
nvestments at far value through SEYERNERRED
other comprenensive income, RAEEED  NBHE
net of tax o o = = (582) o o o (582) o (582)
Exchange differences on transiationof BRI ERMERZE
foreign operations - - - - - - 1,632 - 1,632 (307) 1,325
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEF 2 A% o o o = 9,205 o 1632 123732 134569 13925 148,494
Exercise of the share option fiERE 11 183 = (172 = S = = 2 = 2
Lapse of the share option BRELH = = = (1,410) = = = 1,410 © © ©
Transfer of far value resenve of equity ~ EERA L EEZHHA
investments at fairvalue through other ~~ Kt 2EREMERERE
comprehensive income WinEERE 19 o o = - (4o70) S - 400 - - -
Appropriations to resenves BiEGE o S = = = 25219 - (25219 = = =
Equity-setfled share option amangements b ER £ EHBRER = = = 2,034 = = = = 2,034 = 2,034
Acquistton of non-controling W FERER
interests - - 10,058 - - - - - 10,058 (10,058) -
Final 2019 dividend paic BZE-NERERE - = = = = 3 - (4803 (24803 - (480
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-A=1-R 116,224 1,149,092  282,502* 35,167 26,741* 170,838 26,151 1,432,821 3,239,626 160,310 3,399,936

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

*

of RMB3,1283,402,000 (2019: RMB3,001,533,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

HE#HEBREEGRAVBERLRAZLEEAHE
AR#3,123,402,000t(ZFE—hF : AR
3,001,533,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

> A ng g —
MEHEERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZTF+_-_A=+—HBIL5E

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® TR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBMBRESHRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 758 Al 4 A 161,652 158,762
Adjustments for: HTHEIBIEL FHEE -
Finance costs BTSN 8 158,180 197,772
Interest income FEMA 5 (11,276) (13,655)
Fair value gain from financial assets at AR BEZF AEBZE
fair value through profit or loss, net NEMEENDR
BEKE  FE 5 (10,309) (3,511)
Fair value loss from financial liabilities AR BEZE I ABT
at fair value through profit or loss, NEMBENAR
net BEBE  FHE 6 25,944 5,457
Fair value gain from structured bank HEBMERITERN AR
deposits BEKE 5 (1,276) (4,901)
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEWE - ME NEHE
plant and equipment 5B W EE 6 6,762 22,653
Loss on lease modifications HEBRER 163 -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WENREETE
equipment 14 260,257 250,109
Depreciation of investment property WEMEITE 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 16(a) 11,161 11,632
Amortisation of intangible assets E B ESHE 18 183,347 151,630
Amortisation of deferred government i %E B T % B 2 £
grants (6,098) (5,447)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W IERE 21 12,252 6,013
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment s CRERE),RE
of inventories 20 (1,430) 6,166
Impairment of goodwill B E 17 8,423 -
Dividend income from equity BERRARBEEZS
investments designated at FTAEMEEKEA
fair value through other IR ERRE
comprehensive income WA 5 (672) (225)
Equity-settled share option expenses — LARE S 45 & 79 BE I
Fx 6 2,034 2,701
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fEfREARZ
& 5 = (56,101)
799,125 729,066
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows i 8 IR &€ R &

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_ZT-TF+-_A=1+—RHILFE

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in debt

investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

other receivables and other assets

Decrease in financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Increase in trade and bills payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

FER

Z 5 U IE (1),
B

BARBEZET AHM
2E W H’JTE@‘“&’
(), 8k

TERTFIE - Efb W IR
%%ﬁﬂﬁ@(iﬁﬂ)/

BARBEZSTABR
e e &R

E?gﬁ KIB N B R E
=0

E b e FRIE M BT E A
0

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

REEHMBRE
B FEHR

Net cash flows from operating activities

RETHMBHERE
/?ﬁéi\

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Purchases of items of property, plant

and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Dividend income from equity
investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Disposal of right-of-use assets
Additions of equity investments
designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Additions of intangible assets

Additions of right-of-use assets
Decrease in structured bank deposits
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits
Receipt of deferred government grants

Disposal of a subsidiary

REFDHMERTRE

KA E
BEME BB
REHEAB

BREME - B&ENMERER
B B TS 5RIR
%EEQ%F@ """"" A
Hih 2 E s r R 1T
BENREBA
HEEERAABEZD
FE AR 2
ERERENASHIR
hE RS E
IR E RN A BEE S
FEAEMZE D
EHEERE
IR B B
BIEREEE
RBBIERITEURD
EEMEFTORL, (BN
WS BRI FIE U 47 B
HE—FEHEAE

Net cash flows used in investing

activities

RAZHHARLRE
¥

2020 2019
—g-®F C—TNF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 AR¥TT ARETFT
41,492 139,834

(125,057) 111,770

(63,120) 31,198

(114,016) 4,416

(28,722) -

129,688 71,234

136,701 95,052

776,091 1,182,570

(13,044) (20,736)

763,047 1,161,834

11,276 13,585

(416,452) (356,128)

9,457 3,494

5 672 225

19 53,095 7,349

30,793 -

(33,262) -

18 (228,471) (206,451)

16(a) (230) (1,480)
61,069 54,974

2,793 (11,930)

18,423 4,030

- (2,754)

(490,837) (495,086)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows % S IR &R E &

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-TF+-_A=+—RHILFE

2020 2019
—EBEHF —hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR® TR AR®ETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETBMEEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance DT - MBRFITHX
expenses 31 22 -
New bank borrowings FERITEE 5,230,216 3,058,261
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITEE (5,152,011) (3,682,031)
Interest paid BRI A (157,839) (199,133)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRA 2D (7,450) (7,227)
Final dividend paid B RERE (24,803) (23,884)
Net cash flows used in financing BREEBTAEESRE
activities A (111,865) (854,014)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RE&RBEESZEYWE M,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2) F8 160,345 (187,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning M F#&IE & MIRE
of year 7{??#97) 280,903 425,311
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [& X & B)# R
net (54,100) 42,858
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REXRNBEER
END OF YEAR REZEY 387,148 280,903
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BHeRBESEEYES
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Xl
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITER 26 387,148 280,903

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”’) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Act 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The registered
office of the Company is located at the office of
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1=1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries and other related items.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company is Master Alliance Investment
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

1.

By 75 R AR B &E

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

NEREBER

ELTEEEMAERAR(RAT]) IR
T-TFMNAZZ+EtAREHREHER
AVE(B22E) (—NARN—FFBIRER &
meERkEBIERERETMA L AER
BERRNA  MARABRNE-Z—ZTF
T—ATARBREEAHEXZIMAR
ARI([BERFr]) £ - KRR Mo E
B AConyers Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited®) % £ 5z + bk A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 7%
SEFENERE  RAENEEHNRES
R E MR ER o

ARREE(EEDRAE  BEEEZERAR
NEEZER AR AN EBE LS
3 BJMaster Alliance Investment Limited + £

TECTFEFY | BtEBETERLAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ETF+=R=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

1. RAIREEER(E)

FHENBARZEHR

ARTEEMBRRAMEENT :

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
HEL/
HEAT AL/ ERAS AmREELY BETRARER FRAEEREEDL IBER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
% %

IERLEHARAR 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB577,909,362 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of
(‘Jiangsu Leoch’) () lead-acid batteries

THBLERERAA(IREL))) I ey hE ARH577,909,38270 RERR BENHENRESH

EERIERRIERAR 9 May 2005 PRC’ 1S$103,780,000 - 100 Investment holding and
{Zhaoging Leoch Battery manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd.) lead-acid batteries
(‘Zhaoging Leoch’) (i)

EERTERRGARLA ZZERFRANA hE 103,780, 000% 7 RERR BENHENRESH
(EEEL))

TANENHERRTERLA 26 July 2008 PRC* 1S$10,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) lead-acid batteries
(*Anhui Uplus”) ()

RENENAERHITERAT IEENECAZTAR RE 10,000,000 7 RENHERRESY
(=R DB

MIMETHERERERAA 26 Apr 1999 PRC’ RMBB46,456,523 - 100 Investment holding and sle of
(Leach Shenzhen Renewable Energy lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd) (‘Leoch New Energy’) (i

AR RERERAR “MAERAZTRE FE ABRH846,456,52370 RERRNEENRES
(B8R

REMELHEHERRITERAR 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 = 100 Leasing of properties
(Dongguan Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd) ()

RETRLHERERKMERRA) ZEECEY-ACt4A HE AR%3,500,0007C HEmx

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H

1. RAREEER(E)

RRENB AR 2ER (E)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
HREL/
HEAR AL/ ERAS AMREELY BRTRARER FRARERRANL IEER
Direct Indirect
E# 4
% %
BNRTRERRARAR 23July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 = 100 Sale of leac-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd) ()
BB RERENARAD) “E-CEEAZtER 4B ARE100,0007 HELRESH
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HKS 1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leach International Sales’)
BTEREEERAT(BLAREE) ZE-F54ZRZT-A AR 1B HEUMESH
Leoch Power Supply (H.K,) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
BIERER)ERLA(ELER)) ZZEMENATAR Bk 12,000000%7 RERRNEENRES S
Leoch Battery Gorporation 17 June 2003 USA™ US$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leach Battery Corp.’)
Leach Battery Corporation ZE5ZFRATER a- 3256, 000% T HEREEEY
(TLeoch Battery Corp. )
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV US$1 - 100 Ivestment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited “EFRECACTN\E BERSEE™ %7 RERR
(THonour Label )
Peak Year Investments Limited (‘Peak Year’) 26 January 2007 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Poak Year Invesiments Limited [Peak Year) ~ —3Z+t5-fA-t%H  ABRa#ES™ I RERR
Shieldon Interational Limited (“Shieldon’) 19 January 2007 By USS1 - 100 Investment holding
Shieldon Intemationel Limitec! [ Shieldon) Z2RLE-AThA ABRLEE™ %7 RERR
Leoch Battery Company Limited 26 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “ETLENACTRER EE 1,000,000 RERRNEENRESY

(TLeoch Battery Company])

TECTFEFY | BtEBETERLAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ETF+=R=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAIREEER(E)

RRENB AR 2ER (E)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAR AL/ ERAS AmREELY BEIRARER FRAREREADL IERR
Direct Indirect
B 4
% %

BRRTRERRIERAA 15 March 2006 PRC’ RMB300,000 - 100 Sdle of eac-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd.) ()

BRETRERBNARLA) ZEEAFZATRA hE ARE300,0007T HENERESH

IR RERRIARAR 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lea-acid batteries
(Beijing Leoch Engineering Technology
Co, Ltd) ()

PRRLREREWARLA) ZEIMET-ATRE RE AR¥1,000,0007 HENERESH

MRTERRTERAT 27 September 2007 PRC" RMB1,000,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid btteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.) {)

RIBLEHRHERRA) ZERHEAACTER 9B ARH1,000,0007 HENRESH

Catherine Holdings Intemnational Company 3May 2010 By US4 100 = Investment holding
Limited (‘Catherine Holdings’)

Cathering Holdings Intemational Company Limited ~F-S%%E=H AERAHE™ 4ET RERR
([Catherine Holdings|)

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. ('Leoch Battery Pte.) 5 Apri 2010 Singapore $G§2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. ([Leoch Battery Pte.)) ~ ~F-FZMETH g 20000005 4T HEREEEY

Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore 631 - 100 Ivestment holding
(‘Leach International Holding’)

Leoch Interational Holding P, Lid. ZF-FmACT-B FR 1T AR
([Leoch International Holding)

RERTERRINERAR 26 October 2010 PRC* RMB625,817,381 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Leach Power Supply Corp) lead-acid batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power’) ()

RHRLERGNERLA(RAELER)) —T-TETA-TRR 9E AR¥625,817,38170 RENHELRESH

100 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE AND GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H

1. RAREEER(E)

RRENB AR 2ER (E)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
HEAR AL/ ERAS AMREELY BRTRARER FRARERREADL IERB
Direct Indirect
B 4
% %
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 SriLanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Lanka Private) Ltd. ZF-ZE-fCHRR BERE 337,712,000 BEMEENRESY
FERFEY
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteres India Private Limited “I-ZETRET-B OE 305,988, 0B ELL HELRESH
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help’) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HKS 1 - 100 Ivestment holding
Big Help Group Limited![ Big Help.) “Z——FRA1+AA B 1371 RERR
BTRERRVIARAT 23 Jung 2014 PRC* RMB1,607 458,555 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited) ()
BIRER(RIVERAT() ZR-MERAZTER OB ARE,607,458,5957T RERR
Leoch Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leach Super Power India Pvt “Z-RF/\AtA g 259,110, 2000 E L HENHENKETY
Leach Accupower (M) San. Bhd (‘Accupower’) 10 July 2016 Malaysia MYR40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leach Accupower (V) Sdn. Bhd([Accupower])  ~F—7E+F+H BRED 400000005 KEESE HENHENKETY
RANERETE RN RBRARAR 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
{Anhui Uplus New Energy Material Technology
Co., Ltd.) (‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’) ()
RENERSH RN RERLA ZZ-NENARE i AR 5,000,000 RERR

(EgAEREHFEEE )

TECTFEFY | BtEBETERLAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ETF+=R=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAIREEER(E)

RRENB AR 2ER (E)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
WEAR AL/ ERAS AmREELY BEIRARER FRAREREADL IERR
Direct Indirect
B 4
% %
ARERELERHARAR 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 = 60 Recycle and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) lead from batteries
(‘Taihe Dahua’) (j disposed of
ANERERRNRERLAANGAE)) —T—t5-AnA e ARH110,000,0007 BEEEEHENRALESR
Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘Tele Power’) 23 January 2017 Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-
acid batteries
Tele Power Scn. Bhd. ([ Tele Power|) “5-+5-f-tzH EBRAD 1,000,005 KEZ2E HENHENKETY
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Viginam US$3,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-
acid batteries
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited “E-tENACTAR BB 375000057 HENHENRETY
Leach Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Viginam US$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-
acid batteries
Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited “E+EAACThE BB 2100000% 7 RENHELRESH
Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch France SAS “E-tF+-A-1tZR #A 100,008 7T HENMESY
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH 22 February 2018 Germany EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH ZB-N\E-A-tR &R 10,0008 HENRESH
Leoch ltalia s.r 11 October 2018 Italy EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch ftaas.| “2-N\E+AT-A EAH 100,008 HEREESY
Leoch DBS Limited (‘LDBS) 28 June 2017 United Kingdom (GBP3,516,723 - 100 Ivestment holding
Leoch DBS Limited([LDBS) “E-tEXRCTNE BE 351672358 AR

102
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

1. RAREEER(E)

RRENB AR 2ER (E)

Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issuedand  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/
HEAR AL/ ERAS AMREELY BRTRARER FRARERRANL IERB
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
DBS Leoch Limited (‘DBSL') 16 January 2018 United Kingdom (GBP1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
DBS Leoch Limited!([DBSLJ) “2-\F-AtrH 25 154 HELRESH
MIRTERERERAT 21 September 2020 PRC* RMB10,000,000 = 100 Sale of leac-acid batteries
(Shenzhen Leoch Power Development
Co., Ltd,) )
MIBLERERERAA) ZRCEREAACT-R AR ARE100000007 HELRESH
REATHERERARAE 3 September 2018 PRC* RMBS37,030,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of ithium battery
(Anhui Leoch New Energy Development Lid,) ()
RERTHERERARAA) ZB-\ERAZA hE ARH37,030,0007 RERHERSY

* PRC represents the People’s Republic of China which
excludes, for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan.

* USA represents the United States of America.
*** BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.
(i) Limited companies under PRC law.

(i) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

* mEEPEARLANE  sARSEmE - A
BEPEEEFNTRE - HEDRPIFRITT
B N B

o EREEFRAERE -

o EBERTHSERBELRES -

0] RIEFRBEEKSZBRAR] ©

iy IREBEPBERRIZIIGBEERE -
FRINNESSRAUAEELRFTEER
BEAFESINAEEEEFECEKRE
DZARRZHBRAR - EELRAEMT

HEMKBAR ZER @ BERIEBRIT
Eo
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards and
interpretations issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

1 RREEGE)

BOEXE(A)

HARPERLAEEREAPIRERRNK
SRIBUBNDONAZH - AIARER
TEEROREAHRRERRZENRSE
ZR—VIHEBEERIERN - B

(@) HEHEREATHMERERBEAZED
ES7 K

b) HMENTBMELZEN @ &

© AEBEZEZENBERRE-

B 8~ B AR B 2 A IS $R AR 2 s B
A YRA-HZEERER - M8
NAIZ EAERAEERSIEGIE 2 Bt
REAR  LHEREAREZSTIES®E
BRIEZEBIE

BEkHEMrEKRDSHBEBNAKE
BRRZHEA ANMIFERERD - BIEE
FEREREHREREM  BEEKER
AHAXZERNMESBARMEERE
& R RA - AXERERERES
RERZHEHE -

HWEEERBERBR LAHEB AR &S5 K
KPP ZRIEH R REF —RHAS
RHREE  AEESEHIHEELY
WIRE A LS - B R A A EE
mBE(AERKRELZENE DRERER S
BRIE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopteq)
Amendments to I1AS 1 Definition of Material

and IAS 8

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the
revised IFRS s are described below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets
out a comprehensive set of concepts for
financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting
policies and assistance to all parties to
understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters
on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition
of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It
also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in
any standard. The Conceptual Framework did
not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b) Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be

considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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31 December 2020
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2.2 =B n_I_JBZ &*& %IE El‘]“
B (48

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)
(c) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (c) ERMBERESENFEN - HE S
address issues affecting financial reporting in AERIZE 3957 & B R HM‘*%&%EE'J%?

the period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide

%it'iEl’M RIS B 7E B 55 — A B A
F(EERRR])MAIREG M EELE
GIEOES DAk ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁ’ﬁﬁh ° %

temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting LIEFTIRME T E MRS - EYTE
to continue during the period of uncertainty FTRIEAIES|A S —EER Mﬂ%ﬁl
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In BT BARA BRI AR EHETT o LEAN - 3%

addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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31 December 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies
only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the pandemic and only if (i)
the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;
(i) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change
to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendment did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both.
The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and —Phase 21

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts °
Insurance Contracts %°

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Onerous Contracts = Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 412

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 8

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
Disclosure of Accounting Estimates®

31 December 2020
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31 December 2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17

issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace
a reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR
risk component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to
restate the comparative information.

31 December 2020
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

31 December 2020
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31 December 2020
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable

to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, structured bank deposits and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8-10 years
Office equipment 35 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Tooling and equipment 3-5 years
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold property held as a
right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 48 years.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Properties
Plant and machinery

46 to 50 years
2 to 5 years
3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other
payables and accruals and other liabilities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TEESTBERME(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
madification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESFTHEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future contracts to hedge its price
fluctuation risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs
of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

U in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(@) Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is
recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Sale of properties

Revenue from the sales of properties is
recognised at the point in time when control of
the ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In prior
years, the Company’s functional currency was RMB.
As at 1 July 2018, the Directors had re-evaluated the
economic environment of the Company and determined
that the functional currency of the Company has been
changed from RMB to USD given its major funding and
financing activities were raised increasingly in USD.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognise
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 30 to the financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2020 was RMB2,213,000 (2019: RMB10,636,000).
Further details are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the amount of reversal of inventory provision
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB1,430,000 (2019: recognised RMB6,166,000)
(note 6).
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax
losses as at 31 December 2020 was RMB177,586,000
(2019: RMB70,253,000). Further details are included in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2020, the best estimate of
the carrying amount of capitalised development costs
was RMB622,325,000 (2019: RMB562,002,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM?”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, who is the Group’s CODM for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
does not contain profit or loss information of each
product line and the executive directors reviewed
the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported
under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one reportable segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other

segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by product is as follows:
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2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARETF T

Lead-acid batteries SRR EES 8,324,213 7,386,506
Recycled lead products =] U S 2 an 1,307,149 971,227
Others Hi = 4,989
9,631,362 8,362,722
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

%

KEDHERE

i EE R

@ KESIEBEF Kz

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

PRC H 6,325,994 5,151,752
Europe, the Middle East and Africa BUM ~ AR R IEM 1,390,185 1,425,098
Americas E=M 1,022,021 1,013,657
Asia-Pacific (other than PRC) DAME(CEERE) 893,162 772,215
9,631,362 8,362,722

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

MRHERTIERE P N E D

Tﬁ°

b) FRBEE

2020 2019

—ECEE —NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

PRC i 2,750,088 2,774,521
Other countries/areas HtER, thE 523,813 389,894
3,273,901 3,164,415

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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31 December 2020
—ZE-TF+=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEDIER(1E)
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers EBETEEFHER

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REEZZT-_TFR-_F-NF+=ZA=
no revenue from sales to a single customer amounted +—BLEFE  WEREHE-—XFHH
to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. EWEGAEBEWEHI10%HA L o

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Uiz « Euq A & Uk
GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows: W DT -
2020 2019
—B-EF —T-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTT

Revenue from contracts with customers BPEA#WZE 9,631,362 8,362,722
Revenue from contracts with EEEHWE
customers
() Disaggregated revenue information () Yz EHXHS
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

Types of goods BYEER

Sale of industrial products HETEESR 9,631,362 8,357,733

Others Eib = 4,989
9,631,362 8,362,722

Timing of revenue recognition W 2 T SR s P

Goods transferred at a point in time REEREEEY 9,631,362 8,362,722
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continueq)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

5. Wi ~ HMmUA KRR
(&
EFENWE(E)
0 WEENES )

TRINTRBERVFAGHAER
MR E RS REER 2 WS 5

2020 2019
g g 222 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included in st ATRE BI¥IA KA E
contract liabilities at the beginning of BB R
the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETXEM 143,635 178,188
Performance obligations (i) JBRIEE

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation for the sale of
industrial products is satisfied upon delivery of
the industrial products and payment is generally
due within 60 to 90 days from delivery, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations (continued)

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Wz - EM A K U&=
GAINS (continued)

(&
EEAHWE )

(i) ERIRE(E)

Sale of industrial products (continued) HETXERGE)
2020 2019
—B-2F —ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
Other income and gains N PN
Bank interest income RITF B UL A 11,276 13,655
Government grants* BT Bh ™ 60,161 80,794
Dividend income from equity investments 5 A% A f BEE )
designated at fair value through other FFAEMEE A
comprehensive income MR ERERA 672 225
Sale of scrap materials tHERER 4,016 4,942
Foreign exchange gains, net HNEEDE H I as - JFEE 7,221 -
Gross rental income from investment REMEKEHE
property operating leases: MW AEEE -
Other lease payments, including fixed HMBEERRK -
payments BIEEE 4,120 2,232
Fair value gains, net: A EEkE  FE
Financial assets at fair value through ARBEZEA
profit or loss B eRMEE 10,309 3,511
Structured bank deposits EERITIER 1,276 4,901
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEN B R R 2 W = 56,101
Others HAt 9,309 7,423
108,360 173,784

The government grants represent various
cash payments and subsidies provided by the
local government authorities to the Group as
encouragement for its investment and technological

innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidies.

* BT B Ty 483 77 BUF 8P P94 T A&
EmEERSFARME - USE®R
BRETaE - EARER S/
REERIGITHHAEIR -
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX . BANE A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REEMTATEFTEMER, GEA) AT
charging/(crediting): HE®GH -
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR®F ARBTT

Cost of inventories sold FTEFERA 7,132,172 6,184,270
Employee benefit expense BERMNAZ(PREES
(including directors’ Bl (fFEE9)) -
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages and salaries TENH® 804,177 748,522
Equity-settled share option PAE 2= 45 B mO BB AR A
expenses X 2,034 2,701
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE K 43,029 54,054
849,240 805,277
Amortisation of other intangible HmEmpaEgis
assets except for deferred (IR RE R B ABR M)
development costs 18 17,843 20,673
Research and development costs: 257N :
Deferred development costs i S B K AN 5
amortised* 18 165,504 130,957
Current year expenditure FARZ 172,720 119,347
338,224 250,304
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AT B & 2,800 2,800
Financial liabilities at fair value AR BEEESTABEZ
through profit or loss: TRIBE
Unrealised loss AERER 2,679 5,457
Realised loss B & IEEE 23,265 S
Fair value loss from financial RABEEEFTABEZ
liabilities at fair value through fﬁmﬂlﬁ BAREE
profit or loss, net E5iE - JFER 7 25,944 5,457
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N DL NN/

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. FipTaFl(iE
2020 2019
i g —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR TR ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through A7 BEZ BT AIBZE
profit or loss: ZEMEE :
Unrealised gain REIH W e (10,309) (3,511)
Structured bank deposits: ERBMERITIFN -
Unrealised gain RER U= - (73)
Realised gain B8R (1,276) (4,828)
Fair value gain from structured bank &5 R1TF R A A
deposits, net BEKE  F5 5 (1,276) (4,901)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - BE R REITE
equipment 14 260,257 250,109
Depreciation of investment property & & ¥ E 15 11 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ ff FAEEETE 16(a) 11,161 11,632
Impairment of trade receivables B S EBGIERE 21 12,252 6,013
(Reversal of impairment)/ impairment 77 & CR{E# D) R (E*
of inventories*® 20 (1,430) 6,166
Impairment of goodwill EERE 17 8,423 =
Loss on disposal of items of BBV « WE K&
property, plant and equipment, net B H K E1E - EEE 7 6,762 22,653
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ SMNEFE 3 =58 - S5 (7,221) 6,092
Lease payment not included inthe ~ T it AHERBEEY
measurement of lease liabilities MERK 16(c) 5,706 6,856
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and EERERAEEREFEREFAGZEER

impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RIEERA]F -
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

7. OTHER EXPENSES

7. EffIx

An analysis of other expenses is as follows: HMASHATAT
2020 2019
—EZERF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEEDE H ZRE - JFEE - 6,092
Loss on disposal of items of property, BEEWMXE BMELXBEEB
plant and equipment, net E51E - JFER 6,762 22,653
Fair value loss from financial liabilities at fair 2 BEZE T ABRZNE
value through profit or loss, net BAEBEN AR BEEE -
FEE 25,944 5,457
Others HAth 3,168 7,515
35,874 41,717
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RN
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ARSI T -
2020 2019
p et 222 —F-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEF B 120,592 163,991
Interest arising from discounted bills BRI =R EEMFR 36,630 42,434
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 958 1,347
158,180 197,772
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

9. EEME

Rix EmARL - FBFQREHI5E383(1)
@ (b) ORMERAR(FEEEEFTE
FOBEGIE2RERE 2 FRNESMES T -

2020 2019
—2=®E —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARBTT

Fees we 639 582
Other emoluments: BN -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREWET 1,630 1,630

Equity-settled share option expenses LA S E R R ER 175 146

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIMER 66 67

1,871 1,843

2,510 2,425
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME (&)

(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive
directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors were as follows:

() BYFHTES

FBYIFATESEIN2EEWT

Salaries, Equity-

allowances Performance- settled Pension

and benefits related share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions Total

DY 55

o 2R &EN ke
#E REVER HAYHBRL BRERX HE 3 BE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR

2020 g g 3:3
Mr. Lau Chi Kit S 213 - - 2 - 242
Mr. Nan XinSheng® i 62 = = = = 62
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMERE 213 = = 29 - 242
Dr. Zhu Ping KBt 151 > = 24 > 175
639 - - 82 - 721
2019 ZB-hE

Mr. Lau Chi Kit ABhEE 211 - - 25 - 236
Mr. Liu Yangsheng® PG 123 - - 25 = 148
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMERE 211 - - 25 - 236
Dr. Zhu Ping KiET a7 - - - - a7
582 - - 75 - 657

Mr. Nan XinSheng succeed Dr. Zhu Ping as
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 16 September 2020.

s Mr. Liu Yangsheng passed away on 30 July 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

31 December 2020
—ZE-TF+=A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEM = (EB)
(continueqd)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions Total
M
e 2H gEm Bhe
we REVEF BNEATL BREEX HE 3 ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR
2020 —ECEF
Executive directors: BTESE:
Mr. Dong Li EXRE - 830 = = 61 891
Ms. Yin Halyan Mgfat = 800 = 93 5 898
= 1,630 = 93 66 1,789
2019 ZB-0F
Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Dong Li EZRE - 830 - - 62 892
Ms. Yin Haiyan IV - 800 = 71 5 876
- 1,630 - n 67 1,768

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: Nil).

FAMBEMNEBEERNEXRENES
MHENLZH(CE—NEF : 8 -
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2019: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019:
three) non-director, highest paid employees are as

10. B HFNES

FAREZSFMNEESD  BEMACE
—NF :MB)ES - HEMFBEHEN X
M9 - ER=R(ZT—hF: =
FIHEFZESFWMEENHHMFB W
I

follows:
2020 2019
—E_EF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAEREYEAN 3,415 3,525
Equity-settled share option expenses NEREENERER 278 639
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIME R 16 22
3,709 4,186

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

B THEEZIEEN T EMNES
AET -

as follows:
Number of employees
EEAH
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZTE
AR #1,000,0007T 1 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR ¥1,000,001%2
AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,001%
AR #2,000,0007T 1 -
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001%
AR #2,500,0007T - 1
3 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

11.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2019: 21%) on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply and Leoch
International Sales. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made by Leoch Battery Company and
Big Help as they did not carry on any business in Hong
Kong or had no assessable profits arising in or derived
from Hong Kong during the year.

The Singapore authority approved the application of
Leoch Battery Pte. for the Global Trader Programme
on 24 May 2014 and it was renewed on 30 August
2019, the effective period of which is from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2023. The provision for the
current income tax of Leoch Battery Pte. is based on
the tax rate of 10% (2019: 10%).

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

1. T 5%

AEBARANEENKE R RREEMEE
ERTEH) ADAE B [ AT E A SR ) A
REBEREYNEH -

REASHSNRAER - KRFHA
R AVEE ERBMNTAMER -

HRERBREXHFSTEMAIHMER A
(BMHonour Label * Peak Year * Shieldon X
Catherine Holdings) A B & Z B & I &
HAEEEWH GEMPFERIN LT
2% BhZEMBAREESMNME

Leoch Battery Corp. JAiA EB AL » B
REBBANDERER - LERB UM
T EANEBCEMSHEAR21%(ZE
—NEF :21%) °

BEREMNEGH IR EETMR IO E
naE BETERAELTEHEEHEOE
ARBRN - EEME16.5%(ZF—N
F : 16.5%)FH 1R - B Leoch Battery
Company X Big Helpif £ R & B # BT (1]
BERERB G T - WE W ETIRE BT
STLRE -

FMEERR —_E—NFRA -+ MAEH#
EERRZZE—NFNA=+HEHLeoch
Battery Pte. B @2 E 55 EIMV RS -
EXHA T - NF—A—RABEZ=Z
—=F+=ZA=+—H8ILt ° Leoch Battery
Pte BIEIFTB M I ERHE10%(ZFE— 1
F 1 10%)FTIR B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R & [ 5%

31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

11.INCOME TAX (continued) 1. EH (&)

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus
were designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC
tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15% for the year 2020.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
for manufacturing qualified products with main qualified
raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the
year are as follows:

BASERTENETHE AR ERBE
B REBAHAEHBEEREPEL
ERBRAMR _TTNF—A—BELE
KA R AR B B RO 8 A Bl #) B RR
BE M A5 %R EE R KA E -

RZZZTF IHELT  THELER
RZBHENHETBERBERER S
MHREE  ZHEBEMAEHEF15% -

AMBERERELAEROKRER  IZH
MBRERETEREREMHEERBRE
TSR B 10% ©

FAMSHAXNEZERIEOWT ¢

2020 2019

—B-8F T NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

Current — PRC BNEAFI 18 — A 22,951 9,712

Current — Hong Kong BUHARETE - &8 (10,300) (6,575)
Current — Singapore BNEARLTE — ¥ h0s 14,180 16,381
Current — USA BIEARIE - £ 1,517 1,430
Current — Vietnam BNEAFRIE — iR 3,909 S
Deferred tax FEAEFIE (8,569) 10,281
Total tax charge for the year FARIES KB 23,688 31,229
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

11.INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable
to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the majority of the companies of
the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at effective
tax rate is as follows:

11.

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

FiGH (&)

BEAEERHE D AR aAMAEREAEER
HEEMEFERERRB AR BT
BT AR ERRE A ENHIER Y
BRunF -

2020 2019
i —B-NF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR® T % ARETT %
Profit before tax 758 A1 4 A 161,652 158,762
Tax at the applicable tax WEAREE
rates EOF 7R 42,243 26.1 46,071 29.0
Tax concession for certain & THEBAFA
subsidiaries WBER (29,309) (18.1) (18,083) (11.4)
Additional deductible g 5N AT HRER 2
research and F 2
development expenses (14,801) (9.2) (10,541) (6.6)
Expenses not deductible for 7~ AT 0% 51 5%
tax 450 0.3 871 0.5
Tax losses not recognised AR T IEE 1B 29,028 18.0 14,244 9.0
Tax losses utilised from AR 2B
previous periods 518 (3,923) (2.4) (1,333) (0.9)
Tax charge at the Group’s  IZAEE BRI X
effective rate STEABIAR X 23,688 14.7 31,229 19.7
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31 December 2020

-z

12

13.

—zE+-A=+—A

.DIVIDENDS

12. 88

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARBTT

Final = Nil (2019: HK 2.0 cents) per share ~ *H - (=T — 14 :
FHh2.081L) - 24,321

The Company does not intend to declare the payment
of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,357,594,679
(2019: 1,357,521,666) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2020
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13. B RAREBERERIFTE AR
EERER

BREARFNECHE RS AR EBESR
EANELEREENRFRNBET SRR
WESEE1,357,594,6 79 (ZF — 14 ¢
1,357,521,6660%) A H o

Hﬁ?%ﬁ*ﬁ@ﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁi“_ BB
ﬁ}\F&“1r5$¢E/m$lJ EFE - SEMA
MEBRINEFHBREFAEEITERR
2B (EFEEREARBNAERR) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

31 December 2020
—ZE-TF+=A=+—H

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. B N B S BEERIFE ALE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY £ EZRER (48)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per EREAREERATIRE T &ET
share are based on: =
2020 2019
—B-BF —ThF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Earnings EH
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders i pA5T & S AL LA [ #58
of the parent, used in the basic and ARz B AR E@ER
diluted earnings per share calculations B AEE &N 123,732 132,586
Number of shares
B A
2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hEF
Shares [:dv)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESRERZTN
shares in issue during the year used in FREBITL @A N
the basic earnings per share calculation 5 1,357,594,679 1,357,521,666
Effect of dilution — weighted average e e - TRk
number of ordinary shares: FEHE
Share options i 92,127 168,257

1,357,686,806 1,357,689,923
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND

14. 9% ~ BENKE

EQUIPMENT
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment  vehicles equipment i progress Total
BF HERHE WX RE IAR®KE  ERIE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTn ARMTR ARMTn ARETR
31 December 2020 ZECRETZAZT-R
Cost A
At 31 December 2019 and RIT-NETZA=T-RBR
1 January 2020 “E-FF-A-H 961,774 2,305,303 47,361 48056 266647 209509 3838640
Addiions HE 123580 210472 2,176 5,980 16,59 161,200 520,000
Transfers E 80,292 166,456 407 57 9% (48147) -
Disposals RE (40) (30,065) (583) (1,567) (6,654) 699 (301
Exchange realignment RS (13,452) (13,248) (1,182) (330) (506) (193 (28917)
At 31 Deosmoer 2020 R-B-RETA=+-8 115075 2638918 48179 5210 277014 115377 4283432
Accumulated depreciation and BHMERNE:
impairment
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA=T-BR
1 January 2020 Z5-%5-7-8 (270,162 (1,121,583 (32,501) (36,326 (226317) (1569 (1,687,39)
Depreciation provided during the year ERfERE (46,15 (187,089) (2.671) (6491) (18,883 - (260257)
Disposals RE 184 2,610 511 133 5,382 - 30,082
Exchange reaignment S 2597 2770 68 m 198 = 5,856
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+ZA=1-R (313524)  (1,283,152) (34,593) (39259 (239620) (1569 (1,911,717
Net carrying amount: BEAE:
At 31 Decsmoer 2020 R-B-RETA=+-8 838230 1365766 13586 12,081 87304 113808 2371715
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31 December 2020
—ZE-TF+=A=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14.9)% - BERZEGE)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Plant and Office Motor - Toolingand  Construction
Buidings  machinery  equipment  vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF HERE® BOERG AE IARRE ERIRE o)
RMB'OO0  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AR¥TT ARETR
31 December 2019 “E-NETZAZT-H
Cost: B
At 31 December 2018 and RZF-NETZA=T-RAR
1 January 2019 “E2-hE-A-A 042,741 2,144,909 41,987 018 234,667 107,934 3,517,256
Aditions HE 55,73 136958 5,449 5,291 2816 171759 398,069
Acouisition from a subsidiary B 2 Al (29,380) = (239) (176) = Bo7)  (37.871)
Transfers E 2 2045 47,40 244 162 1138 (61,975 =
Disposdls RE (131500 (25558) 03 23 443 - w3
Exchange realignment B AR 2,888 1,754 157 103 163 (138) 4927
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1+-R 91774 2305303 47361 48086 266647 200509 3,838,650
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE
impairment;
At 31 December 2018 and RZF-NE+ZA=T-RR
1 January 2019 “E2-hE-RA-A (236,834 (947202 (30009  (2717) (207,789 (1569 (1,456,119
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRITER(E (36,704  (187081)  (263%)  (4811)  (18877) - (250,109)
Acoisition rom a subsidiary m-RNBLERE 2,148 = 164 153 = = 2,465
Disposals RE 1,867 13,152 3 2,124 448 - 17,584
Exchange realignment B A (619) (402) 23 (79) (100) = (1,219)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A (270,152) (1,121,533 (32,501) (35326  (226,317) (1569 (1,687,398
Net carrying amount; REYE:
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NETZA=1-R 691622 1,183770 14860 12730 40330 207940 2,151,252

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB628,945,000 (2019:
RMB749,349,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 35 to the

financial statements.

R-IZE-TF+_A=+—H ' A£EKE
EFEH AR 628,945,000T(ZF— AN
F: AR¥749,349,000T) 2 ETIEF R
HBEREEIFERAREEER —RIBITHE
ZER BEREEFEAFL2BMBERE
BI5ES5 o
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

15. R&EW) %

2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Cost: B
At 1 January \/\_ﬂ —H 561 15,869
Distribution to a non-controlling shareholder 7k F — & FE3E A% AL 3R = (15,308)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 561 561
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHTE -
At 1 January n—H—H (194) (1,630)
Depreciation provided during the year $ AT E R (11) (11)
Distribution to a non-controlling shareholder %k ¥ — & FE4%2 A% A 38 - 1,447
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (205) (194)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HA0KHEE 356 367

The Group’s investment property represents one
(2019: one) industrial property in Mainland China which
was subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
property consists of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and
risk of the property. The Group’s investment property
was revalued on 31 December 2020 based on the
valuation by management. Management has reviewed
the valuation assumptions and valuation results once
a year when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a third party under
operating leases.
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

15. REV)= (/&)

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy AREERER

The following table illustrates the fair value TR AEEREMENAABEFE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment B

property:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2020 using
R-E-ZH+=-A=+—H

AREBEEFEMAEBR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EEME EATERE EAFTHE
HwE WARE WARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1/E) (582fE) (583fE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR¥®TR AR¥TxR
Industrial property TEMZE = = 13,255 13,255
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2019 using
R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H
DAEBENEMAEBR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMES BAAER BEATATHE
HwE B ABUR B ABUR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F1E) ($25E) (%£38) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AR®TRT ARETR
Industrial property THEME - = 7,031 7,031
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

The fair value of the investment property is determined
using the comparison method with reference to
comparable sale evidence as available in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed and selected
for the investment property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of its fair value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property, plant and machinery and other equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 46 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have
lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and
5 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of
12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
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16.LEASES (continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

16.1HE (&

rEBEEAEBAGE)
@@ (EFRESE

AEBEAEEENREELNFAR

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use

assets and the movements during the year are as HEBIT -
follows:
Leasehold Plant and
land Properties machinery Total
HELH nE BERESE #at
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR®TR
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—A—H 186,339 14,972 194 201,505
Additions NE 1,480 11,756 - 13,236
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBAT (6,076) (143) = (6,219)
Distribution to a non-controling 7k — % FE1% A%
shareholder RE (6,561) - S (6,561)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,796) (7,751) (85) (11,632)
Exchange realignment ERTIE 478 166 = 644
As at 31 December 2019and  R-Z—NF+-A
1 January 2020 =t-8k
“TTF—-H—H 171,864 19,000 109 190,973
Additions NE 230 386 161 777
Disposal e (30,799) - - (30,793)
Depreciation charge WEER (3,760) (7,280) (121) (11,161)
Revision of a lease term arising A&~ ] 5 i M E
from a change in the FREERK AR ERIB AT
non-cancellable period of
alease - (1,053) - (1,053)
Exchange realignment I (453) (921) 55 (1,319)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZF
+=ZA=+—-AH 137,088 10,132 204 147,424
At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s WN_E-_FEF+_/F=+—8H" $’$I

prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB49,168,000 (2019:
RMB60,356,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 35 to

the financial statements.

TEREFEA A AR 49,168,0007T (=
—NF : AR¥60,356, OOOE)E’]?‘Eﬁiﬂﬂ
HER

RIAE R ERAS BER —RIRTT

BMEZER EHRCEREEZHT  F
2B B IRRMITESS ©
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

©®)

Lease liabilities

1 6 *ﬂ.,\ (/HE
REBEERABEANGE)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included
under other payables and accruals and other
liabilities) and the movements during the year are

as follows:

©)

HERE

FRIE K EET
E%M&ﬁ@%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ&%i
AHREEIT -

2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEmE 19,426 14,886
New leases MEE 547 11,756
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHfBAF = (155)
Accretion of interest recognised during A E R T B 1L1E
the year 958 1,347
Payments (NE7N (8,408) (8,574)
Revision of a lease term arising from a HETAHEEHRARENE &
change in the non-cancellable period PR &R AE BB AT
of a lease (890) -
Exchange realignment bE H SRR (502) 166
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—8#H
ARTEE 11,131 19,426
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mENE 6,032 7,877
Non-current portion IETRBEBD 5,099 11,549
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBEMIHB ST RERER I ®REH

disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.
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16.LEASES (continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

16. 70 & (&

REBEREMEANGE)

) MREZANERNHEEMREFENT

2020 2019
—== ﬂE :i@_hfﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 958 1,347
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (£ REEETEER 11,161 11,632
Expense relating to short-term leases Hi%E HRTHE AR T AH R

and other leases with remaining lease RZZE—NF

terms ended on or before 31 December +Z=HA=+—HaZHl

2019 (included in cost of sales, [Em e E b FE S A B Y

selling and distribution expenses) A GIAHERA

$HE Mo R <) 5,706 6,856

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8% R HE 2 8 7K I8 48 58 17,825 19,835

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 34(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its production and office premises
consisting of three production premises and seven
office premises under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB4,120,000
(2019: RMB2,232,000), details of which are included in
note 5 to the financial statements.

(@ MEMRSRLAEHERNYBERR
Bt 5E34(c) ©

REBERAHEA

AEBRBCEHELCHEAEEERRE
K AENE  BREZEL£ERE&tRE
WAEME - ZSHENERNEXRBEF
XN EREZSWRBRITTAETEHAME
THRE FALAEEEHRNESWALR
AR®4,120,000t(ZE—NF : ARK
2,232,0007T) * FHIEE NI BHmEMEES o
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

16.LEASES (continueqd) 16.

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

HEE
AEBEALHBAGE)
RZTE_TEF+_A=+—H  BELXE

BRI S 2 T AT S S T
WARHBEERNZOT -

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR¥ETT

Within one year —F R 3,485 3,936
After one year but within two years —F A FEMEAA 3,469 3,697
After two years but within three years PELA FB=F A 1,028 3,685
After three years but within four years =F A EEEFEAA 1,021 1,134
After four years but within five years WELA FERFUR 997 1,131
After five years FFEE 8,535 10,874
18,535 24,457
17.GOODWILL 17. 828
RMB’000
AR®ETTT
Cost and net carrying amount: A R AREHE -
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF—A—H8 Z—NF
1 January 2020 +-A=+—HEK-_ZE-FTF
—H—H 10,636
Impairment during the year FRRIE (8,4293)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+=-A=+—H 2,213
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to
CGUs as follows:

31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

B (E)

[k 3R
BREBAMKBNEEEARESH
ReELEn(ReBEEEMDEREN

7 o

PRERCELEM ZHBREENT

2020 2019
—g-%F -T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Accupower Accupower 237 8,660
Taihe Dahua ATFAE 39 39
DBSL DBSL 1,937 1,937
Total HEt 2,213 10,636

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

ReEEEMMAIKREOSBEDRERER
ERAAAIEREESTAGFE  mM&AE
METRRTIARREE B AN R F Y
BREREE -
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill
(continued)

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% (2019: 3%) is determined by considering
both internal and external factors relating to the CGUs.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are 15% (2019: 15%) for Accupower, 20% (2019:
20%) for Taihe Dahua and 11% (2019: 11%) for DBSL.

The recoverable amount of the Accupower was
below its carrying amount and an impairment loss of
RMB8,423,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The impairment was made based
on the result of impairment test for the goodwill using
the value in use in accordance with IAS 36.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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(ZZE—NF 3% MBREHLERE
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T ° Accupower ﬁfﬂ??ﬁié&DBSLfE/i\
MEBARANITEREEDFIA/15% (=
—NEF 15%) » 20%(ZZF—N4F : 20%)
R11%(ZZ—nF  11%) °

Accupowerf) ] Bl & R A HERE(E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R & M 5T

18.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2020

—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H
18. Hith L &=

Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
Elgs BEERRA EFBf R G @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARt ARETR ARETR
31 December 2020 —E-%E
tZA=t+-H:
Cost at 1 January 2020, netof R=Z=ZFF
accumulated amortisation 0 Rt =1
bl 1,499 562,002 18,226 75,687 13569 670,983
Additions AE 2,575 225,827 - - 69 228,471
Amortisation provided during R 55 &
the year (1,531) (165,50 (717 ({10813 (3782)  (183:347)
Exchange realignment 5 % 2 = (572) = = (570)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z_ZF
+-RA=1—-H 2,545 622,325 15,937 64,874 9,856 715,537
At 31 December 2020: RZZE-ZF
+-A=1+-A
Cost A 19,261 1,196,531 21,537 108,126 26,148 1,371,603
Accumulated amortisation E5g i (16,716) (574,206) (5,600) (43,252) (16,292)  (656,066)
Net carrying amount BEFE 2,545 622,325 15,037 64,874 9,856 715,537
31 December 2019; —E-NE
+-A=1+-R:
Costat 1 January 2019, netof  R-Z—NEF
accumulated amortisation —R—BAMmA
Mk R5T8H 3,456 488,696 19,136 86,500 17,655 615,443
Additions NE 2,188 204,263 - - - 206,451
Amortisation provided during R A
the year @145 (130,957) (1,629 (10813 (4,089 (151,630
Exchange realignment TR - - 719 - = 719
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+ZA=1+-H 1,499 562,002 18,226 75,687 13,569 670,983
At 31 December 2019: RZB-n%
+-A=t-H
Cost KA 16,688 970,704 22,155 108,126 26079 1,143,752
Accumulated amortisation REHE (15189)  (408702) (3929 (32439 (125100 (472,769
Net carrying amount FHSE 1,499 562,002 18,226 75,687 13,569 670,983
T oEFFEH | BLEBRRMARAT
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

19.EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. B ERAREBEEHTTA

DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Htt2mER S Em s

5

2020 2019
—g-2F —T-N%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Equity investments designated at fair value  fEE R A A7 BEE
through other comprehensive income: H fth 2 E AR HY
EmMRE -

B

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ELTREREMRE

B (EE

143,027 164,709

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of part of its unlisted equity investments.
The fair value on the date of sale was RMB53,095,000
(2019: RMB7,349,000) and the accumulated
gain recognised in other comprehensive income
of RMB40,770,000 (2019: RMB4,496,000) was
transferred to retained earnings. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group received dividends in
the amount of RMB672,000 (2019: RMB225,000).
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g - $%@Em%ﬁ£ﬁ TR b
BE REERBHNAIABEAAR
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7,349,0007T) ER E 2 EIMEERA R
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31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

A

20.INVENTORIES 20. 78
2020 2019
—B-8F T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials =& 559,451 344,180
Work in progress ERE 713,311 816,658
Finished goods SR om 504,142 656,128
1,776,904 1,816,966
As at 31 December 2020, inventories with the amount eI E - NZE_EF+ A=
of RMB1,430,000 were reversed, while the amount of +—8 28 AARK1,430,000t2FE
RMB6,166,000 was written down to their net realisable Ke®gL MR E—NF+_A=1+—
value at 31 December 2019 as disclosed in note 6. B 2EAARYBG,166,000t 2 FE DM

A BB -

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s RZZFZZEF+A=+—0 AKEHE
inventories with a net carrying amount of approximately HFEL ARE100,000,000 2 EFHFEE
RMB100,000,000 was pledged to secure general BEFEAAEEER —RRTHRENE
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of - BRACERTFENFE  S20HU%
the pledged inventories, please refer to note 35 to the HFMIFESS o

financial statements.

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B B WA
2020 2019
—g-®F —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Trade receivables B 5 W GIA 2,463,962 2,338,905
Less: Impairment provision B RER (44,286) (32,034)
2,419,676 2,306,871
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31 December 2020
—ECRFES_A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB244,949,000 (2019: RMB205,917,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB53,332,000
(2019: RMB57,357,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB178,744,000
(2019: RMB96,149,000) to banks with recourse in
exchange for cash (note 35). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB152,010,000
(2019: RMB81,582,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 41 to
the financial statements.
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31 December 2020
—EZRF+_RA=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. B Z EINIEA (&)

(continued)

RZBE-_EFR_ZTE—NF+-_A=1+—
HRE SRR BIREZA (N EEE

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as a